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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
1.1
Legal status and address for company
SENA DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED registered the conversion into a Public Company Limited on December 23, 2005, Oregistration number is 0107548000684 and the head office is located at 524 Ratchadapisek Road, Samsaen Nok, Huaykwang, Bangkok.

The Company listed into The Stock Exchange of Thailand on July 29, 2009.
1.2
The principle business operations

The Company's main business is property development for sales.
2. BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1 Basis for preparation of the financial statements
These company financial statements are prepared in accordance with Thai generally accepted accounting principles under the Accounting Act B.E. 2000, being those Thai Accounting Standards issued under the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2004, and the financial reporting requirements of the securities and Exchange commission under the securities and Exchange Act.B.E 1992

For the convenience of readers, the financial statements were translated into English from the statutory financial statements in Thai which are issued for the domestic purpose.

2.2 Basis of measurement   

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. (except where otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies)

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are prepared and presented in Thai Baht, which is the Company’s functional currency. (Unless otherwise stated, e.g. nearest thousand)

2.4 Significant accounting judgments and estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles at times requires management to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgments and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures and actual results could differ. The significant accounting judgments and estimates are as follows:

Finance leases/ Operating leases 

The Company and subsidiaries have entered into lease agreements for the rental of land and motor vehicles. The Company and subsidiaries have determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that the lessor retains all the significant risk and rewards of ownership of these properties, and so accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Allowances for doubtful accounts are intended to adjust the value of receivables for probable credit losses. The management uses judgment to establish reserves for estimated losses for each outstanding debtor. The allowances for doubtful accounts are determined through a combination of specific reviews, collection experience, and analysis of debtor aging, taking into account changes in the current economic conditions.  However, the use of different estimates and assumptions could affect the amounts of allowances for receivable losses and adjustments to the allowances may therefore be required in the future.

Impairment of investments

The Company and subsidiaries treat investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment.

Depreciation

In calculating depreciation of plant and equipment, the management estimates useful lives and salvage values of the plant and equipment and reviews estimated useful lives and salvage values if there are any changes.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1     Revised accounting standards and financial reporting standards 

(a) Revised accounting standards and revised financial reporting standards are effective on 1 January 2017 which are relevant and have significant impact to the Company as follows:
TAS 1 (revised 2016)
Presentation of financial statements

TAS 34 (revised 2016)
Interim financial reporting
TAS 1 (revised 2016), the amendments provide clarifications on a number of issues, including

· Materiality - an entity should not aggregate or disaggregate information in a manner that obscures useful information. Where items are material, sufficient information must be provided to explain the impact on the financial position or performance. 
· Disaggregation and subtotals - line items specified in TAS 1 may need to be disaggregated where this is relevant to an understanding of the entity's financial position or performance. There is also new guidance on the use of subtotals. 
· Notes - confirmation that the notes do not need to be presented in a particular order. 
· OCI arising from investments accounted for under the equity method - the share of OCI arising from equity-accounted investments is grouped based on whether the items will or will not subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss. Each group should then be presented as a single line item in the statement of other comprehensive income.
TAS 34 (revised 2016), the amendments clarify that what is meant by the reference in the standard to 'information disclosed elsewhere in the interim financial report'; entities taking advantage of the relief must provide a cross-reference from the interim financial statements to the location of that information and make the information available to users on the same terms and at the same time as the interim financial statements.
The above revised accounting standards and revised financial reporting standards have no significant impact to the Company.
(b) Revised accounting standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 which have significant changes and are relevant to the Company. The Company has not early adopted these revised standards as follows:

TAS 7 (revised 2017)
Statement of cash flows

TAS 12 (revised 2017)
Income taxes
TAS 7 (revised 2017), the amendments require additional disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. This includes changes arising from cash and non-cash.
TAS 12 (revised 2017), the amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax where an asset is measured at fair value and that fair value is below the asset’s tax base. Specifically, the amendments confirm that:
·  A temporary difference exists whenever the carrying amount of an asset is less than its tax base at the end of the reporting period. 

· An entity can assume that it will recover an amount higher than the carrying amount of an asset to estimate its future taxable profits. 
· Where the tax law restricts the source of taxable profits against which particular types of deferred tax assets can be recovered, the recoverability of the deferred tax assets can only be assessed in combination with other deferred tax assets of the same type. 
· Tax deductions resulting from the reversal of deferred tax assets are excluded from the estimated future taxable profits.
Management has assessed and considered that the above revised standards will not have a material impact on the Company.

3.2 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Sena Development  Public Company Limited and subsidiaries that the Company had the significant control in those subsidiaries as follows :
	
	
	Percentage of holding direct and indirect
	

	
	Head office
	2017
	2016
	Type of Business

	Direct-subsidiaries
	
	
	
	

	Victory Asset Management Co., Ltd.
	Bangkok
	99.99
	99.99
	Services apartment and design building and furniture

	S.N. Asset Development 
Co., Ltd.
	Bangkok
	99.65
	99.65
	Property development for sale




for sa

	S&P Estate Development Co., Ltd.
	Phathumthani
	90.00
	90.00
	Property development for sale




for sa

	Property Gateway Co., Ltd.
	Bangkok
	99.99
	99.99
	Property development for sale
for sa

	Eastern Sena Development Co., Ltd.
	Bangkok
	99.99
	99.99
	Services the golf course and to manufacture

	Sena Solar Energy Co., Ltd.


	Bangkok
	100.00
	100.00
	Investment, Development, manufacturing and distribute  electricity from solar energy

	Sena Development A1 
Co., Ltd.
	Bangkok
	99.99
	99.99
	Property development for sale 

	Sena Development A2 
Co., Ltd.
	Bangkok
	99.97
	-
	Property development for sale

	Sena Management Co., Ltd.
	Bangkok
	99.97
	-
	Real estate services

	Living Agent co., Ltd.
(Formerly Rungruengsaap Housing Co., Ltd.)
	Bangkok

	59.90
	-
	Agents and brokers provide real estate

	Sena Development A5 

Co., Ltd.
	Bangkok
	99.97
	-
	Property development for sale

	Indirect-subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	Eight Solar Co., Ltd.
	Bangkok
	51.00
	51.00
	Distribute prefabsteel, Construction materials, Solar panels and inverter including solar system installment

	Sena Green Energy 1 Co.,Ltd.
	Bangkok
	98.00
	98.00
	Manufacture and distribute eletricity 

	Sena Green Energy 2 Co.,Ltd.
	Bangkok
	98.00
	98.00
	Not start opertion

	Sena Green Energy 3 Co.,Ltd.
	Bangkok
	-
	98.00
	Not start opertion

	Sena Green Energy 4 Co.,Ltd.
	Bangkok
	-
	98.00
	Not start opertion

	Sena Green Energy 5 Co.,Ltd.
	Bangkok
	-
	98.00
	Not start opertion

	Sena Green Energy 6 Co.,Ltd.
	Bangkok
	-
	98.00
	Not start opertion

	Sena Green Energy 7 Co.,Ltd.
	Bangkok
	51.00
	51.00
	Tool rental machinery and 

equipment for electricity

	Sena Green Energy 8 Co.,Ltd.
	Bangkok
	98.00
	98.00
	Not start opertion

	Sena Green Energy 9 Co.,Ltd.
	Bangkok
	-
	98.00
	Not start opertion

	Sena Green Energy 10 Co.,Ltd.
	Bangkok
	-
	98.00
	Not start opertion

	Sena Green Energy 11 Co.,Ltd.
	Bangkok
	-
	98.00
	Not start opertion

	Sena Green Energy 12 Co.,Ltd.
	Bangkok
	-
	98.00
	Not start opertion

	Sena Green Energy 13 Co.,Ltd.
	Bangkok
	-
	98.00
	Not start opertion

	Sena Green Energy 14 Co.,Ltd.
	Bangkok
	        -
	98.00
	Not start opertion

	SH2 Bearing Co., Ltd. (Formerly Sena Development A4 Co., Ltd.)
	Bangkok
	-
	98.00
	Property development for sale

	Max Solar Co., Ltd.

	Bangkok
	100.00
	100.00
	Engineering  services and construction work on solar energy

	Associates and joint ventures
	
	
	
	

	Sena Hankyu 1 Co., Ltd.
	Bangkok
	51.00
	-
	Property development for sale

	Aspirationone Co., Ltd.
	Bangkok
	25.00
	25.00
	Trading in non-residential real estate

	Sena Hankyu 2 Co., Ltd (Formerly Sena Development A3 Co., Ltd.)
	Bangkok
	51.00
	-
	 Property development for sale

	Joint venture indirect held by Subsidiaries 
	
	
	
	

	B.Grimm sena solar power Co., Ltd.
	Bangkok
	51.00
	51.00
	Manufacture and distribute eletricity


The significant inter-transactions with subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements were eliminated. 
The consolidated financial statements used the same accounting policy for the same transactions and event that resemble.
3.3 Financial instrument
The Company have no policy to hold financial instrument for speculation and hedging
For the financial instruments shown in statement of financial position consist of cash and cash equivalents, current investment, account receivable, account payable and others payable, loans to related parties, loan from related parties and financial institution an accounting policy of each part of an item shown in others title.
3.4 Basis of recognition of revenues and expenses 
· Sales of land and houses are recognized as revenue when the construction works are completed and the ownerships have been transferred to buyers.
· Other revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis.
3.5 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are cash, tax coupons, bank deposits in the type of savings account, current account and fixed deposits not exceeding three months maturity period with no obligation.
3.6 Temporary Investments 

Temporary Investments is the company and subsidiaries holding less than 1 year.
3.7 Account receivable and Allowance for doubtful

The company and subsidiaries provide allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the amount of expected uncollectible receivable which are based on management evaluation of ability to pay of each receivable.
3.8 Inventories 

Inventories comprise property development for sales are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, consisting of the cost of land, land development, construction costs and expenses. 

3.9 Land held for development

Property development cost is stated at cost. Cost is included land, land developing and direct expense.

3.10 Investments 

Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies under the consolidated financial statements are stated in Balance sheet by equity method. (if any)
On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognized in the statement of income.

3.11 Investments property and Project under construction

Investments Property

· Land is stated at cost.

· Building and construction, office equipment and furniture. Stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives as follows.

	
	Useful life
	

	Building and construction
	20 - 50
	Years

	Equipment and furniture
	5
	Years

	Building and Buiding Fixtures
	30, 50
	Years


· Land Leasehold right (Advance rental payment) is stated at cost and depreciated by straight – line method over the herm of rental agreement (Note 11).

· Building under construction. Shown at cost. And will calculate the depreciation on those assets available. 
3.12 Property, plant and equipment 

Land is stated at cost

Equipments are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and loss on impairment (if any)                      The depreciation is computed by straight-line method over their estimate useful life as follows:

                                               Useful life 
Building office



     13 -30    Years

Golf course and other system



     32, 52    Years

Golf improvement



           10    Years

Sale Office improvement
Term of managing agreement

Office equipment



             5    Years

Tools and equipment



             5    Years

Vehicles



             5    Years
3.13 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liability of the acquired subsidiary and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the acquired subsidiary undertaking at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is separately reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose, identified according to operating segment.

3.14 Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognized in the statement of income.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of non – financial assets is the greater of the assets’ net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.  For an asset that does not generate cash inflows independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash – generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
3.15 Prov​ision for employees’ long – term benefits

Short – term  employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognized as expenses when incurred.

Post – employment  benefits
Defined benefit plans 

The Company and its subsidiaries have obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees upon retirement under labor law. The Company and its subsidiaries treat these severance payment obligations as a defined benefit plan. 
The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from other long – term  benefits are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

For the first-time adoption of TAS 19 Employee Benefits, the Company and its subsidiaries elected to recognize the transitional liability, which exceeds the liability that would have been recognized at the same date under the previous accounting policy, through an adjustment to the beginning balance of retained earnings in the current year.

3.16 Estimation
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the report amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from those estimates.  

3.17 Capitalization of Interest

Borrowing costs are capitalized as cost of assets that the company has incurred borrowing cost on assets that required a period of time to get them ready for use. Capitalization of borrowing cost will be stopped when such assets are ready for their intended use.

3.18 Long – term  leases

Where the Group is the lessee
Leases of property or equipment which substantially transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessees are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated to the principal and to the finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the statement of income over the lease period. The property or equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

Leases not transferring a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.  For long-term leases where the Group does not occupy the entire areas at the lease inception date, lease expenses are charged to the statement of income on a systematic basis over the period of the lease in proportion to the area that the Group occupies in each year.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period expires, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which the termination takes place.
Where the Group is the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are included in property and equipment in the balance sheet. They are depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis consistent with other similar property and equipment owned by the Group. Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Assets leased out by the Group under which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee are classified as finance lease.  The assets held under finance lease are recorded as accounts receivable under finance lease in the balance sheet.

The sales revenue recorded at the commencement of a finance lease represents the fair value of the asset, or if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments accruing to the lessor, computed at a commercial rate of interest.  The cost of sale recognised at the commencement of the lease term is the cost or carrying amount of the leased property.  The difference between the sales revenue and the cost of sale is recorded as gain which is recognised by the Group in accordance with its normal accounting policy.
3.19 Finance lease

Leases of assets that substantially transfer to the Company and its subsidiaries all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets and that the Company and its subsidiaries intends to exercise the option of the leases to purchase the assets at the expiration of the lease term, are accounted for as finance leases.

At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the asset is recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to pay future rentals. Finance charges are charged to the current period operations in proportion to the effective rate.

3.20 Operating Lease

Lease of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lesser are classified as operating leases.  Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

3.21 Income tax

Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.  Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss; and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group/Company takes into account the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Group/Company believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about future events. New information may become available that causes the Company to change its judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously. A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.  Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

3.22 Basic earnings (loss) per share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net profit (loss) by the number of outstanding ordinary shares at the statement of financial position date in case of capital increased (decreased) using the weighted average according period of time receive (repayment) ordinary shares.

3.23 Segment information

Business segments provide products and services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. Geographic segments provide products or services within a particular economic environment that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of components operating in other economic environments.

Segment information is presented in business segments consist of; the property development for sales, services the golf course and the investment properties for rent. Revenue less then 10 percent of total revenue, the consolidated financial statements not present information in segment information.

3.24 Related parties

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or are under common control with, the company, including holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries are related parties of the company.  Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the company that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, including directors and officers of the company and close members of the family of these individuals and companies associated with these individuals also constitute related parties.

4. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
The Company has extensive transactions with the related parties the part of transactions between related parties are assets, liabilities, revenues, costs and expenses. These related parties are related through shareholdings and/or with directorship. The effect of these transactions is the normal business have included in the financial statement with the agreement between the company and the related companies. 
The related parties are as follows:
	Company name
	Nature of business
	Relationship

	Bann Ruam Tang Fhun Co., Ltd.
	Property development
	Common shareholders and directors

	Sinsapthanya Co., Ltd.
	Property development
	Director’s relative

	Pattaya Country Club Co., Ltd.
	Golf course and resort
	Common shareholders

	Rattanapol Co., Ltd.
	Construction materials and  equipment
	Director’s relative

	  Tun Charoen Co., Ltd.
	Holding company
	Director’s relative

	B.V. Asset Co., Ltd.
	Offers apartment house
	Director’s relative              

	N.C.R. Rubber industry Co.,Ltd.
	Production and sale of tires and other related products
	Director’s relative of  indirect subsidiary              

	Inove Engineering Industry Co., Ltd.
	Wholesale of machinery and other equipment.
	Director’s relative of  indirect subsidiary              

	NCR - TRB Industry Co., Ltd.
	Manufacture of Finished plastic products
	Director’s indirect subsidiary

	Solarwa Co., Ltd.
	Investment,Development, manufacturingand distribute electricity from solar energy
	Common shareholders and directors

	TPS Commercial Co., Ltd.
	Investment,Development, manufacturing and distribute  electricity from solar energy
	Common shareholders and directors

	NCB Internationnal Co., Ltd
	Trading in non-residential real estate
	Director’s indirect subsidiary

	Wattanasuk Internationnal Co., Ltd.
	Sale household goods
	Director’s indirect subsidiary

	Acuterealty Co., Ltd.
	Service as a real estate broker, real estate agent
	Director of subsidiary

	Individual Jurisdiction By:
	
	

	   KhunSrianong  Keerativaranon
   and/or
	
	Director’s mother

	KhunSoawaluk  Aueypornsong
	
	Subsidiary’s staff

	KhunTheerawat  Thanyalakpark
	
	Director

	KhunNuttaya  Thanyalakpark
	
	Director’s relative

	KhunBenyaluk  Thanyalakpark
	
	Director

	KhunUmaporn  Thanyalakpark
	
	Director

	KhunKessara  Thanyalakpark
	
	Director

	KhunEkthawee  Thanyalakpark
	
	Director’s relative

	KhunSumet Boonbandansook 
	
	Director’s indirect subsidiary


The significant transactions between the Group and its related parties reflected in the accompanying financial statements as at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 as follows:
	
	
	Baht

	
	
	Consolidated 
financial statements
	Separate 
financial statements

	
	Relationship
	December 31, 2017
	December 31, 2016
	December 31, 

2017
	December 31, 2016

	Trade accounts and other receivable to related parties

	Pattaya Country Club Co., Ltd.
	Common shareholders
	2,218
	4,568
	2,218
	4,568

	Bann Ruam Tang Fhun Co., Ltd.
	Common shareholders and directors
	1,088
	17,187
	-
	-

	Tun Charoen 

     Co., Ltd.
	Director’s relative
	575,342
	575,342
	-
	-

	B.V. Asset Co., Ltd.
	Director’s relative                                   
	-
	1,156,670
	-
	-

	N.C.R. Rubber industry Co., Ltd.
	Director’s relative of indirect                                  subsidiary
	-
	2,477
	-
	-

	NCR - TRB Industry Co., Ltd.
	Director’s indirect subsidiary              
	5,347,034
	-
	-
	-

	Khun Sumet Boonbandansook
	Director’s indirect subsidiary
	74,636
	74,636
	-
	-

	Sinsapthanya 

Co., Ltd.
	Director’s relative
	1,629
	1,410
	1,629
	1,410

	Solarwa Co.,Ltd.
	Common shareholders and directors
	23,150,553
	24,806,467
	-
	-

	TPS Commercial Co., Ltd.
	Common shareholders and directors
	1,987,449
	2,331,535
	-
	-

	Sena Hankyu 1 
      Co., Ltd.
	Joint venture
	9,894,644
	-
	-
	-

	Sena Hankyu 2 

      Co., Ltd.
	Joint venture
	12,723,280
	-
	-
	-

	Property Gateway Co.,Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	-
	-
	684
	1,410

	Eastern Sena Development Co.,Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	-
	-
	2,218
	4,568

	Sena Development A1 Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	-
	-
	1,514,255
	1,514,254

	Sena Development A2 Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	-
	-
	536,470
	-

	Total
	
	53,757,873
	28,970,292
	2,057,474
	1,526,210

	
	
	
	
	
	


	
	
	Baht

	
	
	Consolidated financial statements

	
	Relationship
	January 1, 2017
	Increase
	Decrease
	December 31, 2017

	Short-term loans 
	
	

	Sena Hankyu 2 Co.,Ltd. (Formerly Sena DevelopmentA3Co.,Ltd.)
	Joint venture
	
	
	
	

	Principle
	
	-
	589,140,000
	(589,140,000)
	-

	Accrued interest income
	
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	
	-
	589,140,000
	(589,140,000)
	-

	SH2 Bearing Co.,Ltd. (Formerly Sena Development A4Co., Ltd.)
	Joint venture’s subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	Principle
	
	-
	51,725,000
	(51,725,000)
	-

	Accrued interest income
	
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	
	-
	51,725,000
	(51,725,000)
	-

	Total
	
	-
	640,865,000
	(640,865,000)
	-


The company does not charge interest on loans for use in normal operations.
	
	
	Baht

	
	
	Separate financial statements

	
	Relationship
	January 1, 2017
	Increase
	Decrease
	December 31, 2017

	Short-term loans 
	
	

	Property Gateway Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	 Principle
	
	88,500,000
	15,500,000
	(77,500,000)
	26,500,000

	Accrued interest income
	
	1,001,572
	1,854,577
	(1,001,572)
	1,854,577

	
	
	89,501,572
	17,354,577
	(78,501,572)
	28,354,577

	Eatern Sena Development Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	    Principle
	
	186,400,000
	1,100,000
	(11,500,000)
	176,000,000

	Accrued interest income
	
	7,149,492
	5,190,233
	(7,596,155)
	4,743,570

	
	
	193,549,492
	6,290,233
	(19,096,155)
	180,743,570

	Sena Solar Energy Co.,Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	    Principle
	
	1,700,000
	144,960,000
	-
	146,660,000

	Accrued interest income
	
	9,388
	4,263,870
	-
	4,273,258

	
	
	1,709,388
	149,223,870
	-
	150,933,258

	Eight Solar Co., Ltd.
	Indirect
	
	
	
	

	    Principle
	Subsidiary
	2,550,000
	6,690,100
	(2,100,100)
	7,140,000

	Accrued interest income
	
	88,866
	219,955
	-
	308,821

	
	
	2,638,866
	6,910,055
	(2,100,100)
	7,448,821

	Sena Development. A1 Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	    Principle
	
	176,300,800
	5,300,000
	(176,300,800)
	5,300,000

	Accrued interest income
	
	-
	50,621
	-
	50,621

	
	
	176,300,800
	5,350,621
	(176,300,800)
	5,350,621

	Sena Development. A2 Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	   Principle
	
	-
	327,345,000
	-
	327,345,000

	Accrued interest income
	
	-
	11,629,745
	-
	11,629,745

	
	
	-
	338,974,745
	-
	338,974,745

	Sena Hankyu 2 Co.,Ltd. (Formerly Sena Development A3 Co., Ltd)
	Joint 

venture
	
	
	
	

	   Principle
	
	-
	589,140,000
	(589,140,000)
	-

	Accrued interest income
	
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	
	-
	589,140,000
	(589,140,000)
	-

	SH2 Bearing Co.,Ltd. (Formerly Sena Development A4 Co.,Ltd.)
	Joint venture’s subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	    Principle
	
	-
	51,725,000
	(51,725,000)
	-

	Accrued interest income
	
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	
	-
	51,725,000
	(51,725,000)
	-

	Sena Management Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	    Principle
	
	-
	200,000
	(200,000)
	-

	Accrued interest income
	
	-
	1,670
	(1,670)
	-

	
	
	-
	201,670
	(201,670)
	-

	Sena Development A5 Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	   Principle
	
	-
	1,031,908,699
	-
	1,031,908,699

	Accrued interest income
	
	-
	4,684,868
	-
	4,684,868

	
	
	-
	1,036,593,567
	-
	1,036,593,567

	Total
	
	463,700,118
	2,201,764,338
	(917,065,297)
	1,748,399,159

	
	
	
	
	
	


The Company and subsidiaries mutually agree to charge interest rate 2.80-5.02% per annum on loans for use in normal operations. The Company does not charge interest to certain associate.
	
	
	Baht

	
	
	Separate financial statements

	
	Relationship
	January 1, 2016
	Increase
	Decrease
	December 31, 2016

	Short-term loans 
	
	

	Property Gateway Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	Principle
	
	127,250,000
	43,000,000
	(81,750,000)
	88,500,000

	Accrued interest income
	
	28,657,331
	3,672,890
	(31,328,649)
	1,001,572

	
	
	155,907,331
	46,672,890
	(113,078,649)
	89,501,572

	Eastern Sena Development. Co.,Ltd.

   (Formerly T.Treasury holding Co., Ltd.)
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	Principle
	
	152,794,902
	59,400,000
	(25,794,902)
	186,400,000

	Accrued interest income
	
	2,702,188
	5,422,093
	(974,789)
	7,149,492

	
	
	155,497,090
	64,822,093
	(26,769,691)
	193,549,492

	Sena Solar Energy 
Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	Principle
	
	-
	35,950,000
	(34,250,000)
	1,700,000

	Accrued interest income
	
	22,093
	80,133
	(92,838)
	9,388

	
	
	22,093
	36,030,133
	(34,342,838)
	1,709,388

	Eight Solar Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	Principle
	
	2,550,000
	-
	-
	2,550,000

	Accrued interest income
	
	12,366
	76,500
	-
	88,866

	
	
	2,562,366
	76,500
	-
	2,638,866

	Sena

Development A.1Co.,  Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	Principle
	
	-
	176,300,800
	-
	176,300,800

	Accrued interest income
	
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	
	-
	176,300,800
	-
	176,300,800

	Total
	
	313,988,880
	323,902,416
	(174,191,178)
	463,700,118


The Company and subsidiaries mutually agree to charge interest rate 2.80% – 3.00% per annum on loans for use in normal operations.

	
	
	Baht

	
	
	Consolidated

 financial statements
	Separate

financial statements

	
	Relationship
	December 31, 2017
	December 31, 2016
	December 31, 2017
	December 31, 2016

	Trade accounts and other payable to  related parties
	
	
	

	Rattanapol Co., Ltd.
	Director’s relative
	218,532
	1,006,544
	95,034
	538,925

	Pattaya Country Club 

Co., Ltd.
	Common shareholders 
	97,315
	71,397
	84,809
	56,293

	Bann Ruam Tang Fhun       Co., Ltd.
	Common shareholders and directors
	24,839
	24,839
	24,839
	24,839

	Sena Hankyu 1 Co.,Ltd.
	Joint 

venture
	71,954,078
	-
	-
	-

	Victory Asset Management  Co.,Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	-
	-
	576,555
	354,667

	Eastern Sena Development Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	-
	-
	939,714
	300,118

	Eight Solar Co., Ltd.
	Indirect

Subsidiary
	-
	-
	10,724,561
	6,915,033

	Max Solar   Co., Ltd.
	Indirect

Subsidiary
	-
	-
	1,256,677
	864,050

	S.N.Asset Development Co.,Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	-
	-
	289,400
	-

	Sena Solar Energy Co.,Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	-
	-
	13,700
	-

	Property Gateway Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	-
	-
	122,000
	-

	                      Total
	
	72,294,764
	1,102,780
	14,127,289
	9,053,925


	   
	
	Baht

	
	
	Consolidated financial statements

	
	Relationship
	January 1, 2017
	Increase
	Decrease
	December 31, 2017

	Short-term loans

	1. KhunSriwarat Thanyalakpark
	Director’s relative
	
	
	
	

	   Principle
	
	28,646,357
	-
	(28,646,357)
	-

	
	
	28,646,357
	-
	(28,646,357)
	-

	2. KhunSrianong  Keerativaranon
	Director’s relative
	
	
	
	

	   Principle
	
	15,065,436
	-
	(15,065,436)
	-

	
	
	15,065,436
	-
	(15,065,436)
	-

	3. KhunSumet Boonbandansook
	Director’s indirect Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	    Principle
	
	2,550,000
	38,150,000
	-
	40,700,000

	          Accrued interest expenses
	
	73,500
	488,489
	-
	561,989

	
	
	2,623,500
	38,638,489
	-
	41,261,989

	                      Total
	
	46,335,293
	38,638,489
	(43,711,793)
	41,261,989

	
	
	
	
	
	


	  
	
	Baht

	
	
	Consolidated financial statements

	
	Relationship
	January 1,   2016
	Increase
	Decrease
	December 31, 2016

	Short – term  loans

	1. Khun Sriwarat Thanyalakpark
	Director’s relative
	
	
	
	

	      Principle
	
	28,646,357
	-
	-
	28,646,357

	
	
	28,646,357
	-
	-
	28,646,357

	2. KhunSrianong  Keerativaranon
	Director’s relative
	
	
	
	

	      Principle
	
	15,065,436
	-
	-
	15,065,436

	
	
	15,065,436
	-
	-
	15,065,436

	3. KhunSumet Boonbandansook
	Director’s Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	      Principle
	
	19,415,000
	-
	(16,865,000)
	2,550,000

	         Accrued interest expenses
	
	7,634
	445,121
	(379,255)
	73,500

	
	
	19,422,634
	445,121
	(17,244,255)
	2,623,500

	                      Total
	
	63,134,427
	445,121
	(17,244,255)
	46,335,293


	
	
	Baht

	
	
	Separate financial statements

	
	Relationship
	January 1, 2017
	Increase
	Decrease
	December 31, 2017

	Short-term loans
	
	
	
	
	

	1.S.N.Asset Development Co.,Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	Principle
	
	155,500,000
	77,000,000
	(2,500,000)
	230,000,000

	Accrued interest expenses
	
	5,704,534
	6,523,412
	-
	12,227,946

	
	
	161,204,534
	83,523,412
	(2,500,000)
	242,227,946

	2.S&P Estate Development Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	Principle
	
	49,697,502
	10,000,000
	(7,577,898)
	52,119,604

	Accrued interest expenses
	
	1,457,288
	1,067,278
	-
	2,524,566

	
	
	51,154,790
	11,067,278
	(7,577,898)
	54,644,170

	3.Victory Asset Management Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	Principle
	
	47,000,000
	9,000,000
	-
	56,000,000

	Accrued interest expenses
	
	1,669,532
	1,522,979
	-
	3,192,511

	
	
	48,669,532
	10,522,979
	-
	59,192,511

	 4.Sena Management Co.Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	Principle
	
	-
	55,000,000
	-
	55,000,000

	Accrued interest expenses
	
	-
	691,644
	-
	691,644

	
	
	-
	55,691,644
	-
	55,691,644

	Total
	
	261,028,856
	160,805,313
	(10,077,898)
	411,756,271


Short-term loans from related company, interest rate 2.00-4.95% per annum for a loan on normal operations.
	
	
	Baht

	
	
	Separate financial statements

	
	Relationship
	January 1, 2016
	Increase
	Decrease
	December  31,

 2016

	Short-term loans 

	1. S.N. Asset  Development  Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	Principle
	
	123,500,000
	53,000,000
	(21,000,000)
	155,500,000

	Accrued interest expenses
	
	1,534,676
	4,169,858
	-
	5,704,534

	
	
	125,034,676
	57,169,858
	(21,000,000)
	161,204,534

	2. S&P Estate Development Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	Principle
	
	31,972,380
	18,600,000
	(874,878)
	49,697,502

	Accrued interest expenses
	
	957,716
	830,323
	(330,751)
	1,457,288

	
	
	32,930,096
	19,430,323
	(1,205,629)
	51,154,790

	3. Victory Asset Management  Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	
	
	
	

	Principle
	
	33,000,000
	14,000,000
	-
	47,000,000

	Accrued interest expenses
	
	433,829
	1,235,703
	-
	1,669,532

	
	
	33,433,829
	15,235,703
	-
	48,669,532

	Total
	
	191,398,601
	91,835,884
	(22,205,629)
	261,028,856


Short-term loans from related company, interest rate 2.00% – 2.95%  per annum for a loan on normal  operations.
	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated
financial statements
	Separate
financial statements

	
	December 31, 2017
	December 31, 2016
	December 31, 
2017
	December 31, 2016

	Provisions for employee benefits
	
	

	Directors and executives
	8,604,421
	10,202,895
	8,433,711
	10,051,407


Significant transactions between the Company and its related parties for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
	
	
	
	Baht

	
	
	
	Consolidated financial statements
	Separate financial statements

	
	Relationship
	Pricing policy
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016

	Revenue from management projects

	Pattaya Country Club Co., Ltd.
	Common shareholders
	Agreement  *
	-
	6,667,466
	-
	6,667,466

	Sena Hankyu 1 

      Co., Ltd.
	Joint 

venture
	Agreement **
	10,957,793
	-
	-
	-

	Sena Hankyu 2

      Co., Ltd.
	Joint 

venture
	Agreement **
	91,289,009
	-
	-
	-

	
	
	
	102,246,802
	6,667,466
	-
	6,667,466


*  
The Company has entered  into an agreement to jointly develop Pattaya Resort Project Phase 1, to cooperate with Pattaya Country Club Co., Ltd. for land and buildings in the such project of 84 units and has scheduled for the period from December 1, 2013 and ending on  project completion.
**  A subsidiary entered into a management contract with two related companies. The contract term is 4 years, commencing April 1, 2017 and July 1, 2017, or until the unit is sold. The subsidiaries receive 12% of the project value
	
	
	
	Baht

	
	
	
	Consolidated financial statements
	Separate financial statements

	
	Relationship
	Pricing policy
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016

	Revenue from sales
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Wattanasuk Internationnal Co., Ltd.
	Director’s indirect subsidiary              
	Market price
	6,208
	-
	-
	-

	Inove Engineering Industry Co., Ltd.
	Director’s indirect subsidiary              
	Market price
	378,184
	-
	-
	-

	NCB Internationnal Co., Ltd.
	Director’s indirect subsidiary            
	Market price
	399,801
	-
	-
	-

	NCR - TRB Industry Co.,Ltd.
	Director’s indirect subsidiary              
	Market price
	4,950,364
	-
	-
	-

	B.V. Asset Co., Ltd.
	Director’s relative             
	Market price
	-
	1,081,000
	-
	-

	Inove Engineering  Co., Ltd.
	Director’s relative of indirect subsidiary              
	Market price
	-
	1,360,800
	-
	-

	Sena Hankyu 2

      Co., Ltd.
	Joint 

venture
	Market price
	496,220
	-
	-
	-

	
	
	
	6,230,777
	2,441,800
	-
	-


	
	
	
	Baht

	
	
	
	Separate financial statements

	
	Relationship
	Pricing policy
	2560
	2559

	Interest Income
	
	
	
	

	Eastern Sena Development 

Co.,  Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	2.80-4.54%

per annum
	5,190,233
	5,422,093

	Property Gateway 

  Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	2.80-4.95%

per annum
	1,854,577
	3,672,890

	Eight Solar Co., Ltd.
	Indircet

Subsidiary
	2.80-4.20%

per annum
	219,955
	76,500

	Sena Solar Energy  Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	2.80-4.76%

per annum
	4,263,872
	80,133

	Sena  Development A2 Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	4.54-5.02%

per annum
	11,629,745
	-

	Sena Management  Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	4.76%

per annum
	1,670
	-

	Sena  Development A1 Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	4.50-4.54%

per annum
	50,621
	-

	Sena  Development A5 Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	4.50-4.54%

per annum
	4,684,868
	-

	
	
	
	27,895,541
	9,251,616


	
	
	
	Baht

	
	
	
	Consolidated financial statements
	Separate financial statements

	
	Relationship
	Pricing policy
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016

	Sub-contract fee and materials cost
	
	
	
	

	Eight Solar 
Co., Ltd.
	
Indirect

Subsidiary
	Market price
	-
	-
	17,072,133
	16,032,492

	Max Solar 
Co., Ltd.
	
Indirect

Subsidiary
	Market price
	-
	-
	1,895,599
	1,726,883

	Rattanapol 
Co., Ltd.
	Director’s relative
	Market price
	961,454
	1,369,332
	679,798
	1,027,227

	
	
	
	961,454
	1,369,332
	19,647,530
	18,786,602

	Rent expenses
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Tun Charoen       Co., Ltd.
	Director’s relative
	Baht 2 million per annum  
	2,000,000
	2,000,000
	-
	-

	
	
	
	2,000,000
	2,000,000
	-
	-

	Expense-Director and Director Management
	
	
	
	
	

	Project costs for employee benefits
	
	1,383,813
	1,914,705
	1,383,813
	1,914,705

	Other
	
	
	16,877,319
	14,000,137
	16,697,319
	13,820,137

	
	
	
	18,261,132
	15,914,842
	18,081,132
	15,734,842

	Juristic person administration and project expenses.
	
	
	
	
	

	Victory Asset Management     Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	Agreement
	-
	-
	3,912,199
	3,462,863

	Eastern Sena Development     Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	Agreement
	-
	-
	2,348,271
	2,364,000

	
	
	
	-
	-
	6,260,470
	5,826,863

	Interest expense
	
	
	
	
	

	S.N. Asset  Development       Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	2.80-4.95%

per annum
	-
	-
	6,523,412
	4,169,858

	Victory Asset Management     Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	2.80-2.92%

per annum
	-
	-
	1,522,979
	1,235,703

	S&P Estate Development   Co., Ltd.                 
	Subsidiary
	2%

per annum
	-
	-
	1,067,278
	830,323

	Sena Management          Co., Ltd.
	Subsidiary
	4.50%

per annum
	-
	-
	691,644
	-

	
	
	
	-
	-
	9,805,313
	6,235,884


COMMMITMENTS

· On April 11, 2012, a subsidiary has entered into rental agreement with a related company, the objective for construction a park, rental fee amount of Baht 2 Million per year, totaling of Baht 10 million since April 16, 2012 to April 15, 2017. On April 12, 2017, a subsidiary has entered into a rental agreement to extend for an additional period of 5 years from April 16, 2017 upto April 15, 2022.
· A related company has entered into management and used in house with a subsidiary called Pattaya Country Club and resort project, to a outside person into stay. Within 1 years between January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017. The subsidiary will split revenues rate 30% of the revenue received.

· A subsidiary has assigned to be sale representation of related company, since January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013, the Company has extended for 1 year Ended to December 31, 2017, with the service fee of 3-5% of selling price.  Under the condition in agreement, a subsidiary has to follow.

· The Company has entered into management Pattaya Country Club and resort project with a subsidiary, for 3 year with effect from May 1, 2014 to April 30, 2017, totaling of Baht 200,000 per month the Company has extended for 3 year from May 1, 2017 to April 30, 2020.
· As at December 31, 2017, a subsidiary entered into an agreement management and condominium management issue 11 for a period of 1 year (due from January 2018 to November 2019).
· As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its subsidiaries are between contingent liabilities arising from loan guarantees. No collateral fee charge (Note 15).
· A subsidiary entered into a sales / rental service agreement and property marketing  to be a broker firm with a related company. Effective contract from May 1, 2017 to April 30, 2018, if the notice is not given in writing  within 30 days in advance when the contract expires, the contract shall be deemed effective for a further period of 1 year.
Conflict of interest agreement
On December 23, 2005, the Company signed the memorandum with related company so as to increase transparency in corporate governance and comply with the Securities and Exchange Act, B.E. 1992 regarding to good corporate governance in the areas of minority shareholders benefit protection while there is important agreement as follows:
Between the Company and Pattaya Country Club Co., Ltd. (Related company)

1. The related company will not purchase or operate land development or house construction so as to sell or to let or any other business operation in respect of real estate no matter by related company or in the collaboration project or joint investment with other entrepreneur except real estate the related company has operated presently. 
2.
In case that the related company will develop real estate on the land of such related company which was located on the outside area of Pattaya Country Club Golf course, such related company will have to propose to the Company   as developer or participant in such project development as the first choice. If the Company denied such offer, the related company may enter to operate such land development no matter by itself or participation in the collaboration project or joint investment with other entrepreneur. 

3.
In case that the related company wishes to sell land of such related company which was located on outside area of Pattaya Country Golf Club, Such related company agreed to offer to sell such land to the Company as the first choice with the prices not higher than appraisal value appraised by independent appraisers who receive the consent from Securities Exchange Committee which appraisal value appraised for the period not exceeding six months before the company will purchase such land. 
4.
Both parties agreed that any operation under this contract, both parties are responsible for compliance according to law, regulation, announcement including regulation and notification issued by Stock Exchange of Thailand, especially notification in respect of connected transactions or acquisition or disposal of assets or any other notification in order to protect the benefit of minority shareholders of the Company.  

5.
Any counter party cannot discreetly use human resource including any asset of another counter party for its own benefit in its business operation.
However, on April 3, 2006, the Company agreed to additionally amend such agreement with the Pattaya Country Club Co., Ltd.
The contract of additional amendment between the Company and Pattaya Country Club Co., Ltd. (related company)
1. (Amendment of topic no.1.1), Pattaya Country Club Co., Ltd. will not purchase additional land or operate land development or house construction for sale or for let or any other business operation in respect of real estate no matter by Pattaya Country Club Co., Ltd. itself or in the collaboration or joint investment with other entrepreneur apart from the real estate project which has already operated presently.   

2. (Amendment of topic no 1.2), in case that Pattaya Country Club Co., Ltd. wishes to develop real estate project on the land which was located outside area of Golf course, it will have to offer to Sena Development Company Limited  as the sole developer of such project. If Sena development Co., Ltd denied such offer, Pattaya Country Club Co., Ltd. does not hold the right to develop such land no matter by itself or participant in the collaboration project or joint investment with other entrepreneur. In this case, Pattaya country Club Co., Ltd. holds sole right of such land disposal.  
On January 3, 2012, the Company agreed to additionally amend such agreement with the Pattaya Country Club Co., Ltd, as follows:

3.  (To amend Article 1.2) Sena Development Public Company Limited has the right to purchase land and structure of Pattaya Country Club located at the peripheral area of the golf course of Pattaya Country Club, to which Pattaya Country Club has no right to deny.  Both parties agreed to date that the selling price determined by Sena Development Public Company Limited would not be higher than that appraised by an independent appraiser, and in case transaction was made after 1 year of the date of execution of this Memorandum of Understanding, such price could be adjusted based on the cost at the rate of not exceeding 7 % per annum (originally, in case Pattaya Country Club wishes to develop a real estate project on the land of the Company in the peripheral area of the golf course, Pattaya Country Club must propose for Sena Development Public Company Limited alone to carry out such project.  If Sena Development Public Company Limited denies such proposal, Pattaya Country Club has no right to carry out the development of the land, whether personally or by participating in a cooperating or co-investing project with other entrepreneurs.  In this case, Pattaya Country Club has only one right, i.e. to sell the land).
4. (To amend Article 1.3) in case Pattaya Country Club wishes to sell its land with structure located in the peripheral area of the golf course, Pattaya Country Club agrees to offer for sale said land to Sena Development Public Company Limited first at the price not higher than that determined in Article 1.2 However, if Sena Development Public Company Limited does not wish to buy said land, Pattaya Country Club shall then have the right to offer for sale said land to a third party at the price not lower than that offered to Sena Development Public Company Limited.
On April 25, 2013, the counterparties had intended to terminate the previous memorandum of agreement and has signed the new one by clearly specifying the scope of each party’s business in which there will not be conflict of interest as follows:
1. Pattaya  country club has agreed to not purchase lands or develop or construct house for sale or rent or proceed any business  related  to real estate  neither  for  PCC  or  joint  project or joint  investment  with other business owner other than the real  estate  project that  PCC has proceeded  on the date of the agreement.
2. Sena has right to purchase lands or constructions  of  PCC that located in nearby area of PCC golf course PCC has no right to refuse . Both  counter party has agreed  that the purchase  price  set by SENA  will not be over the appraisal  price of  independence  appraisers. In the case of the transtruction process after  1 year from the agreement date, the price  may be increased  by carrying cost not over 7 % per annum .

3. Sena has right to joint business with PCC for developing lands or constructions  instead purchasing lands and constructions on section 2 . PCC has no right to refuse. The compensation of PCC will not be over the price of   lands and constructions on section 2.

4. Pattaya country club agreed to offer purchasing lands and constructions to SENA not over the price in section 2 to the agreement, In case that SENA  intends to  purchase lands and constructions, SENA must response the offering by 90 days from the date of receiving offering price, In case of SENA refuses to purchase, Pattaya country club has right to repair the constructions and sell lands and constructions to other parties.
Between the Company and Bann Ruam Tang Fhun Co., Ltd. (Formerly known as Grungthep Land development Co., Ltd.) (related  company)
1. As long as the related company takes the whole profit received from operation after deducting expense and paying tax according to law and donating to various public charity organization which is generally acceptable or for other charity (no matter that donation will receive taxation benefit or not), the Company consents that related company to operate business which may have the competition nature with the Company.  

2. Any counter party cannot discreetly use human resource including any asset of another counter party for its  own benefit in its business operation. 

3. The related company agrees and certifies that the related company will not pay dividend to shareholders or any benefit both in monetary and non-monetary from related company to shareholders, directors and the management. Except payroll or directors remuneration according to the normal rates which determined in advance. 
Furthermore, the Company and Bann Ruam Tang Fhun Co., Ltd. have additional guidance as follows:  
1.     Major shareholders of the related company shall operate charity project only for one project at one time and the project value shall not exceed 5% of all project value of the Company. 

2.     The Audit committee and the auditor of the Company shall audit the accuracy of the financial statements of related company and total profit shall be donated to the charity.

On April 25, 2013, the counterparties had intended to terminate the previous memorandum of agreement and has signed the new one by clearly specifying the scope of each party’s business in which there will not be conflict of interest as follows:

1. As long as the related company takes the whole profit received from operation after deducting expense and paying tax according to law and donating to various public charity organization which is generally acceptable or for other charity (no matter that donation will receive taxation benefit or not), the Company consents that related company to operate business which may have the competition nature with the Company.  
2. Any counter party cannot discreetly use human resource including any asset of another counter party for its own benefit in its business operation. Exceptions are as follows:

(1)
Human resource, any counterparty may receive an assistance from the company’s management of employee in the case that the management or employee volunteers and will not receive any compensations, and the assistance will not impact with the duty of work for the company.

(2)
Asset with compensation. Any counter party may use any assets by paying compensation to another counter party. As the letter agreed upon.

(3)
The company is able to allow Ban Ruam Tang Fun Co., Ltd. to use any  assets that the company cannot (or has no policy to) transfer to the third party for qenerating revenue and the usage to assets will not increase the expense of the company in which the  company may ask  for compensation as agreed.
3. The related company agrees and certifies that the related company will not pay dividend to shareholders or any benefit both in monetary and non-monetary from related company to shareholders, directors and the management. Except payroll or directors remuneration according to the normal rates which determined in advance

On April 3 and 10, 2006, the Company signed the memorandum with related company so as to increase transparency in corporate governance and comply with the Securities and Exchange Act, B.E. 1992 regarding to good corporate governance in the areas of minority shareholders benefit protection while there is important agreement as follows:

Between the Company and Sirinthip Karn Keha Co., Ltd. 
1. Sirinthip Karn Keha Co., Ltd. will not purchase additional land or operates land development or house construction for sales or for let or any other business operation in respect of real estate no matter by Sirinthip Karn Keha Co., Ltd. itself or in the collaboration project or joint investment with other entrepreneur apart from land that Sirinthip Karn Keha holds ownership presently.

2. In case that Sirinthip Karn Keha Co., Ltd. wishes to develop real estate project on the land of Sirinthip Karn Keha Co., Ltd., Sirinthip Karn Keha Co., Ltd. will have to offer to Sena Development PCL. as sole developer of such project. If Sena Development PCL. denied such offer, Sirinthip Karn Keha Co., Ltd. does not hold the right to develop such land no matter by itself or by participant in the collaboration project or joint investment with other entrepreneur. In this case, Sirinthip Karn Keha Co., Ltd. holds sole right of such land disposal.   

3. Sirinthip Karn Keha Co., Ltd. will have to offer to sell such land to Sena Development Co., Ltd. as the first choice as the price not higher than appraised price by independent appraiser received the consent from Securities Exchange Committee which appraisal value appraised for the period not exceeding six months before Sena Development PCL. will purchase such land. However, if Sena Development PCL. does not wish to purchase such land from Sirinthip Karn Keha Co., Ltd., Sirinthip Karn Keha Co., Ltd. will therefore hold the right to sell such land to outside parties in the prices not lower than prices offered to Sena Development Company Limited.
4. Both parties agreed that in any operation under this contract, both parties are responsible for compliance with legal, regulation, announcement including regulation and notification issued by Stock Exchange of Thailand, especially notification in respect of connected transactions or acquisition or disposal of assets or any other notification in order to protect the benefit of minority shareholders of the Company.
On July 3, 2017, the Company entered into additional memorandum with a juristic person and an unrelated person. Due to the restructuring of the ownership of land to be bound and certified right of the old memorandum betaween the Company and Sarinthip Karn Keha Co., Ltd. dated April 3, 2006.
Between the Company and Jaroen Roj Land Co., Ltd. (related company)
1. Jaroen Roj Land Co., Ltd. agrees and certifies to Sena Development PCL. that Jaroen Roj Land Co., Ltd. will not purchase additional land or operate land development or house construction for sale or for let or any other business operation in respect of real estate no matter by Jaroen Roj Land Co., Ltd. itself or in the collaboration project or joint investment with other entrepreneur apart from real estate project that Jaroen Roj Land Co., Ltd. has operated presently.

Between the Company and Bung Num Ruk Thanee Co., Ltd. (related company)
1. Bung Num Ruk Thanee Co., Ltd. agrees and certifies to Sena Development PCL. that Bung Num Ruk Thanee Co., Ltd. will not purchase additional land or operate land development or house construction for sale or for let or any other business operation in respect of real estate no matter by Bung Num Ruk Thanee Co., Ltd. itself or in the collaboration project or joint investment with other entrepreneur apart from real estate project that Bung Num Ruk Thanee Co., Ltd. has operated presently.

Between the Company and Thitirat Wisawagam Co., Ltd. (related company)
1. Thitirat Wisawagam Co., Ltd.agrees and certifies to Sena Development Company Limited that Thitirat Wisawagam will not purchase additional land or operate land development or house construction for sale or for let or any other business operation in respect of real estate no matter by Thitirat Wisawagam itself or in the collaboration project or joint investment with other entrepreneur apart from real estate project that Thitirat Wisawagam Co., Ltd. has operated presently.
5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of;

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidate financial statements
	Separate financial statements

	
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016

	Cash 

	1,713,053
	1,487,017
	569,533
	540,000

	Cash at banks - saving accounts
	776,756,617
	231,601,935
	591,955,724
	165,062,211

	Cash at banks - current accounts
	10,607,351
	14,682,283
	3,270,959
	9,734,303

	Cash at banks - fixed accounts 
	-
	105,087
	-
	-

	Check due but not deposit
	58,230,246
	22,673,531
	58,131,899
	15,421,663

	Total
	847,307,267
	270,549,853
	653,928,115
	190,758,177


Saving deposit is subject to bank’s floating interest rate.
6. TRADE ACCOUNTS AND OTHER CURRENT RECEIVABLE

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of;

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidate 
financial statements
	Separate 
financial statements

	
	December 31,
2017
	December 31,
2016
	December 31,
2017
	December 31,
2016

	Accounts receivable-Aging
	
	
	
	

	In due
	138,523,869
	6,972,399
	2,616,196
	2,574,203

	Not over 3 months
	6,109,235
	3,239,143
	492,772
	421,960

	Over 3 – 6 months
	809,628
	40,896
	28,330
	40,896

	     Over 6 month and  less 1 years
	16,166,509
	48,089
	66,930
	48,089

	Total
	161,609,241
	10,300,527
	3,204,228
	3,085,148

	Other current receivable
	
	
	
	

	     Advance payment
	14,609,069
	12,785,666
	11,353,060
	14,233,169

	Prepaid expenses
	82,903,325
	55,335,073
	84,080,070
	50,732,037

	Deposits for land
	386,719,774
	158,192,000
	291,039,260
	158,192,000

	Revenue Receivables
	15,106,493
	13,792,525
	12,442,180
	11,498,720

	     Other
	31,275,219
	9,322,031
	5,065,442
	3,639,978

	Total
	530,613,880
	249,427,295
	403,980,012
	238,295,904

	Trade receivable from related parties
	
	
	
	

	Trade receivables -Aging.
	21,961,031
	-
	-
	-

	Not over 3 months
	530,955
	1,231,306
	-
	-

	     Over 6 month and  less 1 years
	5,421,670
	2,477
	-
	-

	Total
	27,913,656
	1,233,783
	-
	-

	Other  trade  current receivables
	25,844,217
	27,736,509
	2,057,474
	1,526,210

	Total Trade receivables from related parties (Note 4).
	53,757,873
	28,970,292
	2,057,474
	1,526,210

	Total  Trade accounts and other current receivable
	745,980,994
	288,698,114
	409,241,714
	242,907,262


On August 30, 2017, the Company entered into an agreement to purchase and sell land with an unrelated person, totaling 8 rai and  28.8 square wah,at the price of Baht 95.95 million. The Company paid a land deposit of Baht 19.19 million and  agree to register the transfer of ownership within November 30, 2017, Subsequently, the Company made a transfer ownership letter within June 29, 2018

On December 5, 2017, the Company entered into an agreement to purchase and sell land with an unrelated person, totaling 17 rai and  170.5 square wah,at the price of Baht 906.17 million. The Company paid a land deposit of Baht 271.85 million and  agree to register the transfer of ownership within June 5, 2018
On November 15, 2017, the subsidiary entered into an agreement to purchase and to sell land with an unrelated entity ,amounting to a totaling 1 rai and 231.8 square wah at the price of Baht 473.85 million. The subsidiary has paid a land deposit of Baht 94.77 million and  agree to register the transfer of ownership within January 15, 2018.
7. IN​VENTORIES – NET
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of;
	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated financial statements
	Separate financial statements

	
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016

	Land

	4,514,452,644
	3,712,844,085
	3,722,347,965
	3,177,002,440

	Land development cost
	117,712,290
	110,565,044
	104,062,911
	97,096,494

	Land and club-house
	12,873,429
	12,873,429
	12,873,429
	12,873,429

	Public utility
	840,225,771
	780,133,801
	696,649,148
	615,250,723

	Construction works
	9,693,316,525
	8,004,003,862
	8,488,953,207
	6,839,058,871

	Management fee
	123,701,915
	100,583,641
	114,173,133
	91,070,859

	Borrowing cost
	541,292,708
	429,440,803
	483,951,619
	379,728,708

	Others expenses
	350,899,224
	303,415,295
	292,451,438
	253,036,600

	Total

	16,194,474,506
	13,453,859,960
	13,915,462,850
	11,465,118,124

	Less Accumulated transfer to cost of property sales
	(12,299,857,129)
	(10,186,979,295)
	(10,677,966,338)
	(8,664,438,397)

	Deferred interest expenses
	(6,261,449)
	(6,261,449)
	(6,261,449)
	(6,261,449)

	Net
	3,888,355,928
	3,260,619,216
	3,231,235,063
	2,794,418,278

	Finished house held for  sales - net
	69,083,194
	13,893,755
	69,083,194
	13,893,755

	Finished goods
	51,643,543
	18,664,178
	-
	-

	Total
	4,009,082,665
	3,293,177,149
	3,300,318,257
	2,808,312,033

	Land held for development
	2,363,081,897
	1,433,137,673
	712,558,176
	789,771,155

	Total Inventories-Net
	6,372,164,562
	4,726,314,822
	4,012,876,433
	3,598,083,188



As at December 31, 2017, the Company and subs​idiary mortgaged the above land with total cost amount of Baht 2,091.95 million and Baht 595.69 million, respectively, as collateral for loans (Note 15).
Consolidated financial statements

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company and subsidiary capitalized interest expense as a part of cost of inventory amounting to Baht 110.38 million and Baht 75.92 million, respectively.
Separate financial statements

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company capitalized interest expense as a part of cost of inventory amounting to Baht 104.22 million and Baht 73.52 million, respectively.

The projects of the Company group are as follows:
	
	Consolidated
financial statements
	Separate                         financial statements

	
	December 31, 2017
	December 31, 2016
	December 31, 2017
	December 31, 2016

	Number of projects on hand at beginning of periods
	28
	22
	26
	20

	Number of closed projects
	(2)
	-
	(2)
	-

	Number of the new projects
	4
	6
	2
	6

	Number of projects on hand at end of period
	30
	28
	26
	26

	Amount of sale contracts (Million Baht)
	18,014
	14,652
	15,774
	12,587

	Percentage of total sales in projects on hand
	68
	65
	67
	65


Cost of each plot of land is lower than the appraisal values, according to the report of independent appraiser by market value method.
LAND HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT-NET
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of:
	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated financial statements
	Separate  financial statements

	
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016

	Cost of land
	2,263,205,596
	1,283,388,188
	664,490,546
	683,232,217

	Related expenses of land
	23,698,476
	74,052,905
	21,744,455
	74,045,565

	Public utility development
	45,463,512
	48,984,911
	26,323,175
	32,493,373

	Borrowing cost
	30,714,313
	26,711,669
	-
	-

	Total
	2,363,081,897
	1,433,137,673
	712,558,176
	789,771,155



Costs of each plot of land are not exceeding the appraisal value appraised by independent appraiser with market value method or not less than appraisal value appraised by T.A. Management Corporation (1999) Co.,Ltd. as per report dated June 24, 2016 and September 9, 2016 and December 11, 2016 by independent appraiser with market value method.

On January 27, 2017, a subsidiary entered into 11 land sale agreements with  unrelated persons, totaling 6,515.90 square wah, amounting to Baht 326.77 million. The subsidiary has already transferred the ownership.
On March 28, 2017 the Company entered into the land sale and purchase agreement with a non-relater party totaling 1 plot of 10 rai 3 ngan and 70 square wah amounting to Baht 193.56 million. The Company has been transferred ownership right
On May 2, 2017 the Company entered into the land sale and purchase agreement with a non-relater party totaling 2 plot of 10 rai 2 ngan and 43 square wah amounting to Baht 288.52 million. The Company has been transferred ownership right.
On September 28, 2017 and November 24, 2017, a subsidiary entered into 2 land sale agreement with an unrelated  person amounting to 49.20 square wah at a price of Baht 36.90 million. And 1,194 square wah at the price of Baht 895.50 million respectively. The subsidiary has already transferred ownership.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the company has mortgaged land held for development at the cost amounting to Baht 550.73 million and Baht 697.13 million, respectively, as collateral for loans (Note 15).
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, subsidiaries has mortgaged land held for development at the cost amounting to Bath 1,551.83 million and Bath 284.49 million, respectively, as collateral for loans (Note 15).

8. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATEDS AND JOINT VENTURE - NET 
8.1  The movement of Investments in associated and joint venture for the year ended December 31, 2017 are as follow :
	
	
	Baht

	
	
	Consolidated

financial statements
	
	Separate

financial statements

	
	
	(Equity Method)
	
	(Cost Method)

	As at January 1, 2017
	
	571,082,006
	
	100,749,900

	Purchase / Increase investment
	
	421,972,873
	
	421,972,873

	Profit(loss)from investments in 
associates and joint venture
	
	40,216,202
	
	-

	Results from inter-transactions
	
	(81,781,918)
	
	-

	As at December 31, 2017
	
	951,489,163
	
	522,722,773


8.2  Details of Investments in associated and joint venture companies consist of :
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Consolidated financial statements
	
	Separate financial statements

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Equity Method (In Baht)
	
	Cost Method (In Baht)

	 
	Company’s name
	
	Type of
Business
	
	Paid-up Capital         (In Baht)
	
	Holding
Portion
	
	As at
December 31, 2017
	
	As at
December 
31, 2016
	
	As at
December 31, 2017
	
	As at

December 31, 2016

	Associates and joint venture
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Aspirationone 

Co.,Ltd
	Trading         in non-residential real estate
	650,350,000
	
	25.00%
	
	158,857,863
	
	61,047,707
	
	162,500,000
	
	62,500,000

	Sena Hankyu 1 Co.,Ltd
	Property Development
	372,000,000
	
	51.00%
	
	184,811,073
	
	37,834,354
	
	189,719,900
	
	38,249,900

	Sena Hankyu 2 Co.,Ltd
	Property Development
	334,000,000
	
	51.00%
	
	79,926,514
	
	-
	
	170,502,873
	
	-

	B.Grimm sena solar power Co.,Ltd
	Produce and sell electricity from alternative energy
	835,000,000
	
	51.00%
	
	527,893,713
	
	472,199,945
	
	-
	
	-

	Total
	
	
	
	
	
	
	951,489,163
	
	571,082,006
	
	522,722,773
	
	100,749,900


8.3  Summarized financial information of associated and joint venture company.


The significant financial information of a associated and joint venture company are summarized below.

	
	                                                                    (Unit : Thousand Baht)

	
	Consolidated financial statements

	Company’s name
	Paid – up            share capital
as at

December 31, 2017
	Total assets
as at

December 31, 2017
	Total liabilities
as at
December 31, 2017
	Total revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2017
	Profit (Loss)for the year ended

December 31, 2017

	Aspiration one Co.,Ltd
	650,350
	661,845
	26,063
	668
	(8,759)

	Sena Hankyu 1 Co.,Ltd
	372,000
	874,406
	505,151
	544
	(1,931)

	B.Grimm sena solar power Co.,Ltd
	835,000
	3,502,419
	2,459,146
	388,045
	112,583


	
	(Unit : Thousand Baht)

	
	Consolidated financial statements

	Company’s name
	Paid – up            share capital

as at

December 31, 2017
	Total assets

as at

December 31, 2017
	Total liabilities

as at

December 31, 2017
	Total revenues 

for the four-month

periods ended

December 31, 2017
	Profit (Loss)                  for the four-month

periods ended

December 31, 2017

	Sena Hankyu 2 Co.,Ltd
(Formerly Sena Development A3
Co., Ltd.)
	334,000
	967,270
	657,483
	228
	(24,124)


On December 6, 2016 the Company has invested in a joint venture company(Sena Hankyu 1 Co., Ltd.), holding shares in the proportion of 51 percent of the registered capital. The Company has paid all the shares and registered shares on December 6, 2016.

Subsequently, on March 20, 2017, the meeting of the Board of Directors No. 3/2017 held approved the subscription of newly issued shares of such joint venture company(Sena Hankuy 1 Co., Ltd), increasing registered capital from Baht 75 million to Baht 575 million, increasing Baht 500 million and has called to pay up share capital increase Baht 200 million, and then, on March 23, 2017, the Company has paid share capital increase Baht 102 million to maintain the existing shareholding 

Subsequently, on July 6, 2017, the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 9/2017 of Sena Hankuy 1 Co., Ltd. passed a resolution approving the payment of additional shares from the shareholders in proportion to Baht 50 million The capital increase was Baht 25.50 million on July 21, 2017. On October 2, 2017, The board of directors meeting No. 12/2017. the Company passed a resolution approving to call  the additional amounting to Baht 47 million. The Company paid the additional paid-up shares Baht 23.97 million. on 10 November 2017
The board of directors meeting No. 1/2017 on January 16, 2017 has resolution to establish Sena Development A 3 Co., Ltd. with share capital of Baht 1 million (10,000 ordinary shares of par Baht 100 per share). The new company was established on January 24, 2017. The company holds 9,997 ordinary shares or 99.97% of total ordinary shares. On January 24, 2017 the company paid Baht 999,700 million (99.97% of registered share capital). 
On June 7, 2017 the Company has entered into the Joint Venture Agreement and the Share Subscription Agreement with Hankyu Realty Co., Ltd. for the joint investment in the property development business through Sena Hankyu 2 Co.,Ltd (Formerly Sena Development A3 Co., Ltd.) The details of the joint investment are as follows:

1. Sena Hankyu 2 Co.,Ltd (Formerly Sena Development A3 Co., Ltd.) will increase its registered capital in the amount of Baht 499 Million from MillionBaht 1 to Baht 500 Million by issuing new 4.99 ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 100 each;
2. The Company will subscribe 2,540,001 shares or equivalent to 50.90% of the total newly issued shares at Baht 100 per share, or equal to Baht 254,000,100 And that the Company will waive its right to subscribe the newly issued shares of 2,449,999 shares at the par value of Baht 100 per share or equal to Baht 244,999,900 to Hankyu Realty co., Ltd.

The Company's shareholding ratio in Sena Hankyu 2 Co.,Ltd (Formerly Sena Development A3 Co., Ltd.) following the capital increase andwaiver of right by the Company will reduce from 100% to 51% Company presents its investments in such companies under the heading. Investments in associates The preparation of the consolidated financial statements until May 31, 2017

On June 7, 2017, Sena Hankyu 2 Co.,Ltd (Formerly  named Sena Development A3 Co., Ltd.)  the Company called for partial payment of Baht 46.29 per share, amounting to Baht 231 million. On July 6, 2017, The board of directors meeting No. 2/2017. the Company passed a resolution approving to call  the additional shares of Baht 14.23 per share, amounting to Baht 71 million. The Company paid the additional paid-up shares Baht 36.21 million.
On October 2, 2017, The board of directors meeting No. 5/2017 of Sena Hankyu 2 Co.,Ltd called for partial payment of Baht 6.21 per share, amounting to Baht 31 million. The Company paid the additional paid-up shares Baht 15.81 million.
On February 16, 2017, the Board of Directors' meeting of  Aspirationone Co., Ltd passed a resolution approving to call  the payment of additional shares from the shareholders in the amount of Baht 499.50 million by divided into 2 payment periods. , April  2017  with Baht 249.75 million. and July 2017, with  Baht 249.75 million. On April 24, 2016, the Company paid for the share proportion  in the amount of Baht 62.50 million.

Subsequently, on August 1, 2017, the Board of Directors' meeting of Aspirationone Co., Ltd passed a resolution approving to call  the shares capital of Baht 149.75 million. The Company paid the share capital of Baht 37.50 million on September 26, 2017.
On April 27, 2017, Aspiration one Co.,Ltd entered into additional land lease agreement to change the  terms of the land contract with the Crown Property Bureau (the lessor), the lease agreement has been postponed from April 1, 2016 to April 1, 2017, and the lease agreement term is 30 years from April 1, 2020 and due date of lease is March 31, 2050. The remaining rent of Baht 218 million. will be paid to the lessor on the date of signing the additional land lease agreement. The lessor agrees to mitigate the delay to the tenant on Pocket Lane and a modification of Baht 9 million. after deducting the remainder, the remaining rent be paid in full quarter 2 of 2017, amount of Baht 209 million.
On December 31, 2017 Aspirationone Co., Ltd has commitment  construction work agreement and service of Baht 1,440 million and  Baht 17 million  respectively.
9. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 
 As at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of:
	(Unit : Baht)

	Separate financial statements

	Company
	Paid-up Capital

(Thousand Baht)
	Portion of Investment (%)
	Cost method
	Dividend for the year ended December 31,

	
	December 31, 
2017
	December 31, 2016
	December 31, 
2017
	December 31, 2016
	December 31, 
2017
	December 31, 
2016
	2017
	2016

	Victory  Asset Management  Co., Ltd.
	192,200
	192,200
	99.99
	99.99
	175,378,636
	175,378,636
	-
	-

	S.N. Asset Development 

Co., Ltd.
	122,000
	122,000
	99.65
	99.65
	121,573,000
	121,573,000
	-
	-

	S&P  Estate Development

Co., Ltd.
	14,000
	14,000
	90.00
	90.00
	12,600,000
	12,600,000
	-
	-

	Property Gateway 

Co., Ltd.
	553,400
	553,400
	99.99
	99.99
	553,392,000
	553,392,000
	-
	-

	Eastern Sena Development Co., Ltd.
	665,000
	665,000
	99.99
	99.99
	590,000,000
	590,000,000
	-
	-

	Sena Solar Energy Co.,Ltd.
	426,000
	426,000
	100.00
	100.00
	425,998,000
	425,998,000
	-
	-

	Sena Development A1 Co,. Ltd
	86,064
	86,064
	99.99
	
99.99
	86,063,901
	86,063,901
	-
	-

	Sena Development A2   Co,. Ltd
	1,000
	-
	99.97
	-
	999,700
	-
	-
	-

	Sena Managment Co,. Ltd
	2,000
	-
	99.97
	-
	1,999,400
	-
	-
	-

	Living Agent Co.,Ltd
	1,000
	-
	59.90
	-
	599,000
	-
	-
	-

	Sena Development A5  Co,. Ltd
	1,000
	-
	99.97
	-
	999,700
	-
	-
	-

	Total Investments in Subsidiaries
	
	
	
	
	1,969,603,337
	1,965,005,537
	-
	-


The board of directors meeting No. 5/2016 on November 14, 2016 has resolution to establish Sena Development A 2 Co., Ltd. with share capital of Baht 1 million (10,000 ordinary shares of par Baht 100 per share). The new company was established on January 4, 2017. The company holds 9,997 ordinary shares or 99.97% of total ordinary shares. On January 4, 2017 the company paid Baht 999,700  (99.97% of registered share capital)
The board of directors meeting No. 6/2016 on November 30, 2016 has resolution to establish Sena Management Co., Ltd. with share capital of Baht 1 million (10,000 ordinary shares of par Baht 100 per share). The new company was established on January 18, 2017. The company holds 9,997 ordinary shares or 99.97% of total ordinary shares. On January 18, 2017 the company paid Baht 999,700 (99.97% of registered share capital) Subsequently, the Board of Directors' meeting No. 2/2017 held on September 1, 2017 approved the increase of the registered capital of the Company. The registered share capital was increased from Baht 1,000,000 to Baht 2,000,000 and the share transfer was registered on September 27, 2017. The Company's shareholding proportion is remain the same.
The board of directors meeting No. 2/2017 on February 23, 2017  The Company approved to purchase ordinary shares of Living Agent Co.,Ltd. 599 shares at Baht 1,000 per share, total amounting to Baht 599,000. The purchasing shares have been registered with Ministry of Commerce on March 17, 2017. 
The Board of Directors' meeting No. 5/2017 held on August 2, 2017, the Company approved the establishment of Sena Development A 5 Co., Ltd. ,amounting to Baht 1 million (10,000 ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 100 each) has been registered with the Department of Business Development on August 23,2017, the Company holds 9,997 shares or 99.97% of the total shares. The Company paid for such shares in the amount of Baht 999,700 (at the rate of 99.97% of the registered capital)
The Board of Directors of a subsidiary No. 1/2017 held on April 27, 2017, approved to perchase the increase of the registered capital of Sena Green Energy 7 Co.,Ltd., increasing registered capital from Baht 10 million to Baht 60 million, increasing Baht 50 million and has called to pay up share capital increase Baht 12.50 million, and then, on May 23, 2017, a subsidiary has paid share capital increase Baht 6.38 million to maintain the existing shareholding 
The Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of a subsidiary No. 2/2017 held on November 27, 2017, approved to sell the investment of Sena Green Energy 3 Co.,Ltd., to Sena Green Energy 6 Co.,Ltd., and Sena Green Energy 9 Co.,Ltd., to Sena Green Energy 14 Co.,Ltd of Baht 24,500,000 (98,000 ordinary shares of par Baht 250 per share) The company has not started the business.
10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY– NET

The significant movements during for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated financial statements

	
	Cost
	
	Accumulated depreciation.
	
	Book value- net

	
	2016
	      Increased
	Decreased
	2017
	
	2016
	      Increased
	Decreased
	2017
	
	2016
	
	2017

	Infrastructure Land
	2,527,823
	-
	-
	2,527,823
	
	-
	-
	-
	-
	
	2,527,823
	
	2,527,823

	Land
	192,382,039
	-
	-
	192,382,039
	
	-
	-
	-
	-
	
	192,382,039
	
	192,382,039

	Building and Structures
	617,173,524
	-
	-
	617,173,524
	
	106,666,754
	16,248,445
	-
	122,915,199
	
	510,506,770
	
	494,258,325

	Fixture and office Equipment
	17,481,659
	10,700
	(3,912,798)
	13,579,561
	
	16,460,163
	298,893
	(3,687,722)
	13,071,334
	
	1,021,496
	
	508,227

	Total
	829,565,045
	10,700
	(3,912,798)
	825,662,947
	
	123,126,917
	16,547,338
	(3,687,722)
	135,986,534
	
	706,438,128
	
	689,676,414

	Increase  leasehold right
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	81,050,325
	
	81,050,325

	Less Amortization of  leasehold right
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(12,336,244)
	
	(13,992,388)

	Investment property - Net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	775,152,209
	
	756,734,351


	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated financial statements

	
	Cost
	
	Accumulated depreciation.
	
	Book value- net

	
	2015
	      Increased
	Decreased
	Transfer 
	2016
	
	2015
	      Increased
	Decreased
	      Transfer
	2016
	
	2015
	
	2016

	
	
	
	      
	in (out)
	
	
	
	
	      
	In (out)
	
	
	
	
	

	Infrastructure Land
	2,527,823
	-
	-
	-
	2,527,823
	
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	
	2,527,823
	
	2,527,823

	Land
	192,382,039
	-
	-
	-
	192,382,039
	
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	
	192,382,039
	
	192,382,039

	Building and Structures
	612,905,237
	4,430,950
	-
	(162,663)
	617,173,524
	
	90,603,691
	16,063,063
	-
	-
	106,666,754
	
	522,301,546
	
	510,506,770

	Fixture and office Equipment
	16,571,494
	747,502
	-
	162,663
	17,481,659
	
	15,902,157
	558,006
	-
	-
	16,460,163
	
	669,337
	
	1,021,496

	Total
	824,386,593
	5,178,452
	-
	-
	829,565,045
	
	106,505,848
	16,621,069
	-
	-
	123,126,917
	
	717,880,745
	
	706,438,128

	Increase  leasehold right
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	71,050,325
	
	81,050,325

	Less Amortization of  leasehold right
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(10,680,100)
	
	(12,336,244)

	Investment property - Net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	778,250,970
	
	775,152,209


	
	
	Baht

	
	
	Separate financial statements

	
	Cost
	
	Accumulated depreciation.
	
	Book value- net

	
	2016
	      Increased
	Decreased
	2017
	
	2016
	Increased
	Decreased
	2017
	
	2016
	
	2017

	Building
	330,638,286
	-
	-
	330,638,286
	
	24,547,209
	6,628,180
	-
	31,175,389
	
	306,091,077
	
	299,462,897

	Lift Systems
	22,102,000
	-
	-
	22,102,000
	
	2,764,515
	736,726
	-
	3,501,241
	
	19,337,485
	
	18,600,759

	Plumbing, electrical system
	59,574,172
	-
	-
	59,574,172
	
	7,195,311
	1,985,786
	-
	9,181,097
	
	52,378,861
	
	50,393,075

	Utilities
	2,909,339
	-
	-
	2,909,339
	
	363,899
	96,977
	-
	460,876
	
	2,545,440
	
	2,448,463

	Compressed sir systems
	22,173,196
	-
	-
	22,173,196
	
	2,773,420
	739,099
	-
	3,512,519
	
	19,399,776
	
	18,660,677

	Landscaping and other
	12,720,455
	-
	-
	12,720,455
	
	1,591,076
	424,011
	-
	2,015,087
	
	11,129,379
	
	10,705,368

	Total
	450,117,448
	-
	-
	450,117,448
	
	39,235,430
	10,610,779
	-
	49,846,209
	
	410,882,018
	
	400,271,239

	Increase  leasehold right
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	81,050,325
	
	81,050,325

	Less Amortization of leasehold right 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(12,336,244)
	
	(13,992,387)

	Investment property - Net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	479,596,099
	
	467,329,177


	
	
	Baht

	
	
	Separate financial statements

	
	Cost
	
	Accumulated depreciation.
	
	Book value- net

	
	2015
	      Increased
	Decreased
	Transfer 
	2016
	
	2015
	      Increased
	Decreased
	      Transfer
	2016
	
	2015
	
	2016

	
	
	
	
	in (out)
	
	
	
	
	      
	in (out)
	
	
	
	
	

	Building
	326,207,336
	4,430,950
	-
	-
	330,638,286
	
	17,963,747
	6,583,462
	-
	-
	24,547,209
	
	308,243,589
	
	306,091,077

	Lift Systems
	22,102,000
	-
	-
	-
	22,102,000
	
	2,027,789
	736,726
	-
	-
	2,764,515
	
	20,074,211
	
	19,337,485

	Plumbing, electrical system
	59,574,172
	-
	-
	-
	59,574,172
	
	5,209,525
	1,985,786
	-
	-
	7,195,311
	
	54,364,647
	
	52,378,861

	Utilities
	2,909,339
	-
	-
	-
	2,909,339
	
	266,922
	96,977
	-
	-
	363,899
	
	2,642,417
	
	2,545,440

	Compressesor systems
	22,173,196
	-
	-
	-
	22,173,196
	
	2,034,321
	739,099
	-
	-
	2,773,420
	
	20,138,875
	
	19,399,776

	Landscaping and other
	12,720,455
	-
	-
	-
	12,720,455
	
	1,167,065
	424,011
	-
	-
	1,591,076
	
	11,553,390
	
	11,129,379

	Total
	445,686,498
	4,430,950
	-
	-
	450,117,448
	
	28,669,369
	10,566,061
	-
	-
	39,235,430
	
	417,017,129
	
	410,882,018

	Increase  leasehold right
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	71,050,325
	
	81,050,325

	Less Amortization of leasehold right 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(10,680,100)
	
	(12,336,244)

	Investment property - Net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	477,387,354
	
	479,596,099


Investment property consist of: 1) Land is stated at cost, Building and construction stated at cost less accumulated depreciation of assets for rent such as three apartments are not exceeding the appraisal value appraised by independent appraiser (Global Asset vuluer Co.,Ltd and T.A. Management Corporation (1999) Co.,Ltd.) as per report dated June 23,2016 and September 15, 2016 and October 10, 2016 appraisal value Baht 88.45 million, 19.71 million and 44.80 million). 2) Assets for rent such as land and warehouse for rent at Sukhumvit 50, is stated at cost less accumulate depreciation. And 3) Communities mall is stated at cost less accumulate depreciation and leasehold right is stated amortization of leasehold right are not exceeding the appraisal value appraised by independent appraiser (G.PV Global Property Valuation Co.,Ltd. As per report dated February 23, 2016 appraisal value Baht 570.70 million)

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and subsidiaries have mortgaged land and structures cost of Baht 445.69 million and 145.70  million respectively, as collateral for loans from the financial institutions.  (Note 15.)
11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET

The significant movements during for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated financial statements

	
	Cost
	
	Accumulated depreciation.
	
	Book value- net

	
	2016
	      Increased
	Decreased
	2017
	
	2016  
	Increased
	Decreased
	2017
	
	2016
	
	2017

	Land
	394,372,131
	-
	-
	394,372,131
	
	-
	-
	-
	-
	
	394,372,131
	
	394,372,131

	Golf development
	124,264,000
	-
	-
	124,264,000
	
	16,015,846
	2,669,308
	-
	18,685,154
	
	108,248,154
	
	105,578,846

	Golf  improvement
	31,246,753
	-
	-
	31,246,753
	
	10,408,432
	3,124,675
	-
	13,533,107
	
	20,838,321
	
	17,713,646

	Building and Structures
	354,804,766
	71,946,119
	(8,423,585)
	418,327,300
	
	78,785,569
	16,802,292
	(6,639,894)
	88,947,967
	
	276,019,197
	
	329,379,333

	Sale office improvement
	1,304,253
	-
	(1,304,253)
	-
	
	1,304,252
	-
	(1,304,252)
	-
	
	1
	
	-

	Office Equipments
	91,750,783
	25,897,266
	(360,072)
	117,287,977
	
	60,334,748
	13,023,593
	(360,070)
	72,998,271
	
	31,416,034
	
	44,289,706

	Sola Equipments
	37,706,768
	2,098,703
	-
	39,805,471
	
	4,550,506
	1,720,973
	-
	6,271,479
	
	33,156,262
	
	33,533,992

	Power Generation System

under construction
	-
	532,658
	-
	532,658
	
	-
	-
	-
	-
	
	-
	
	532,658

	Vehicles
	48,485,410
	4,561,525
	(2,072,000)
	50,974,935
	
	33,193,134
	5,587,482
	(2,071,999)
	36,708,617
	
	15,292,276
	
	14,266,318

	Total
	1,083,934,864
	105,036,271
	(12,159,910)
	1,176,811,225
	
	204,592,487
	42,928,323
	(10,376,215)
	237,144,595
	
	879,342,376
	
	939,666,630

	Less Allowance for impairment.
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(3,864,368)
	
	(3,864,368)

	Property Plant and Equipment - net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	875,478,008
	
	935,802,262


	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated financial statements

	
	Cost
	
	Accumulated depreciation.
	
	Book value- net

	
	2015
	      Increased
	Decreased
	Transfer 
	2016
	
	2015   
	      Increased
	Decreased
	Transfer 
	2016
	
	2015
	
	2016

	
	
	
	
	in (out)
	
	
	
	
	      
	in (out)      
	
	
	
	
	

	Land
	394,372,131
	-
	-
	-
	394,372,131
	
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	
	394,372,131
	
	394,372,131

	Golf development
	124,264,000
	-
	-
	-
	124,264,000
	
	13,346,538
	2,669,308
	-
	-
	16,015,846
	
	110,917,462
	
	108,248,154

	Golf  improvement
	31,246,753
	-
	-
	-
	31,246,753
	
	7,283,757
	3,124,675
	-
	-
	10,408,432
	
	23,962,996
	
	20,838,321

	Building and Structures
	304,149,319
	55,881,082
	(5,225,635)
	-
	354,804,766
	
	54,906,641
	29,104,554
	(5,225,625)
	-
	78,785,569
	
	249,242,678
	
	276,019,197

	Sale office improvement
	1,304,253
	-
	-
	-
	1,304,253
	
	1,304,252
	-
	-
	-
	1,304,252
	
	1
	
	1

	Office Equipments
	90,609,795
	8,092,347
	(6,951,359)
	-
	91,750,783
	
	63,750,377
	3,332,693
	(6,748,321)
	-
	60,334,748
	
	26,859,418
	
	31,416,034

	Sola Equipments
	39,442,829
	-
	(1,736,061)
	-
	37,706,768
	
	1,690,195
	2,860,311
	-
	
	4,550,506
	
	37,752,634
	
	33,156,262

	Vehicles
	42,765,605
	9,378,000
	(3,658,195)
	-
	48,485,410
	
	31,600,807
	2,775,514
	(1,183,189)
	-
	33,193,134
	
	11,164,798
	
	15,292,276

	Total
	1,028,154,685
	73,351,429
	(17,571,250)
	-
	1,083,934,864
	
	173,882,567
	43,867,055
	(13,157,135)
	-
	204,592,487
	
	854,272,118
	
	879,342,376

	Less Allowance for impairment.
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(3,864,368)
	
	(3,864,368)

	Property Plant and Equipment - net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	850,407,750
	
	875,478,008


	
	Baht

	
	Separate  financial statements

	
	Cost
	
	Accumulated depreciation.
	
	Book value- net

	
	2016
	      Increased
	    Decreased
	2017
	
	2016
	      Increased
	Decreased
	2017
	
	2016
	
	2017

	Land
	21,321,308
	-
	-
	21,321,308
	
	-
	-
	-
	-
	
	21,321,308
	
	21,321,308

	Building and Structures
	122,245,289
	71,946,119
	(7,978,806)
	186,212,602
	
	56,641,880
	10,882,469
	(6,623,175)
	60,901,174
	
	65,603,409
	
	125,311,428

	Office Equipments
	51,904,574
	24,227,619
	-
	76,132,193
	
	32,634,841
	8,997,943
	-
	41,632,784
	
	19,269,733
	
	34,499,409

	Vehicles
	35,355,467
	4,442,925
	(2,072,000)
	37,726,392
	
	24,909,381
	4,218,946
	(2,071,999)
	27,056,328
	
	10,446,086
	
	10,670,064

	Total
	230,826,638
	100,616,663
	(10,050,806)
	321,392,495
	
	114,186,102
	24,099,358
	(8,695,174)
	129,590,286
	
	116,640,536
	
	191,802,209

	Less Allowance for impairment.
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(3,864,368)
	
	(3,864,368)

	Property Plant and Equipment - net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	112,776,168
	
	187,937,841


	
	Baht

	
	Separate  financial statements

	
	Cost
	
	
	Accumulated depreciation.
	
	Book value- net

	
	2015
	      Increased
	      Decreased
	Transfer 
	2016
	
	2015
	      Increased
	Decreased
	Transfer
	2016
	
	2015
	
	2016

	
	
	
	
	in  (out)
	
	
	
	
	
	in (out)
	
	
	
	
	

	Land
	21,321,308
	-
	
	
	21,321,308
	
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	
	21,321,308
	
	21,321,308

	Building and Structures
	75,761,024
	51,709,900
	(5,225,635)
	-
	122,245,289
	
	47,996,059
	13,871,446
	(5,225,625)
	-
	56,641,880
	
	27,764,965
	
	65,603,409

	Office Equipments
	49,897,878
	8,730,414
	(6,723,718)
	-
	51,904,574
	
	30,793,770
	8,555,666
	(6,714,595)
	-
	32,634,841
	
	19,104,108
	
	19,269,733

	Vehicles
	28,302,312
	7,770,850
	(717,695)
	-
	35,355,467
	
	21,864,736
	3,762,333
	(717,688)
	-
	24,909,381
	
	6,437,576
	
	10,446,086

	Total
	175,282,522
	68,211,164
	(12,667,048)
	-
	230,826,638
	
	100,654,565
	26,189,445
	(12,657,908)
	-
	114,186,102
	
	74,627,957
	
	116,640,536

	Less Allowance for impairment.
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	(3,864,368)
	
	(3,864,368)

	Property Plant and Equipment - net
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	70,763,589
	
	112,776,168


On July 15, 2016, the Company has entered into a lease agreement for office building and car park building with a non-related party for the period from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2026 total rental fee of Baht 126 million. The total fee are classified as 1.  leasehold right of Baht 120 million, payment Baht 10 million at the agreement date and Baht 110 million at the date of lease registration within January 31, 2017 2. rental fee at Baht 50,000 per month commencing in January 2017. On May,31 2017, The Company has extended of lease registration until December 31, 2017. On November 25, 2017, The Company has extended of lease registration until March 31, 2018
Property, plant and equipment  the golf course is stated at cost, stated at cost less accumulated depreciation are not exceeding the appraisal value appraised by independent appraiser (T.A. Management Corporation (1999) Co.,Ltd.) as per report dated November 21 and 30, 2016 appraisal value Baht 196.42 million  and 624.70 million by  analyzing costs and income, respectively).

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and subsidiaries have mortgaged the land and building amounting of Baht 25 million and 37.62 million, as collateral for long-term loans from financial institutions. (Note 13.)
As at December 31, 2017, a portion of the Company’s equipment with historical cost of Baht  million and a portion of subsidiary’s assets at Baht 73.84  million and 26.15 million are fully depreciated but they are still in use.
12. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES)

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Components of deferred tax asset (Liabilities) are as follows:

	
	(Unit: Baht)

	
	Consolidated
	Separate

	
	December 31, 2017
	December 31, 2016
	December 31, 2017
	December 31, 2016

	Deferred tax assets 
	
	
	
	

	Set off of tax  
	13,124,695
	3,142,725
	-
	-

	Deferred tax assets - Net
	13,124,695
	3,142,725
	-
	-

	Deferred income tax liabilities 
	
	
	
	

	Set off of tax  
	(15,396,579)
	(10,855,545)
	(8,760,065)
	(3,955,848)

	Deferred income tax liabilities - Net
	(15,396,579)
	(10,855,545)
	(8,760,065)
	(3,955,848)

	Total
	(2,271,884)
	(7,712,820)
	(8,760,065)
	(3,955,848)


	
	

	
	(Unit: Baht)

	
	Consolidated

	
	
	(Charged) / credited to:
	

	
	January 1, 2017
	Profit or loss
	Other comprehensive income
	Equity
	December 31,  
2017

	Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
	
	
	
	
	

	Retained Loss
	215,153
	(215,153)
	-
	-
	-

	Depreciation  of investments 

    property
	(6,921,637)
	(3,089,208)
	-
	-
	(10,010,845)

	Depreciation  of property, plant 

    and equiment
	(1,550,670)
	(72,622)
	-
	-
	(1,623,292)

	Surplus on revaluation of assets.
	(5,615,193)
	-
	-
	740,158
	(4,875,035)

	Retention
	467,595
	(185,554)
	-
	-
	282,041

	Accrued income
	-
	(4,730,885)
	-
	-
	(4,730,885)

	Advances received from customer
	1,746,737
	12,636,004
	-
	-
	14,382,741

	Employee benefit obligations
	3,945,195
	358,196
	-
	-
	4,303,391

	Total
	(7,712,820)
	4,700,777
	-
	740,158
	(2,271,884)


	
	(Unit: Baht)

	
	Consolidated

	
	
	(Charged) / credited to:
	

	
	January 1, 2016
	Profit or loss
	Other comprehensive income
	Equity
	December 31,  
2016

	Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
	
	
	
	
	

	Retained Loss
	-
	215,153
	-
	-
	215,153

	Depreciation  of investments 

    property
	(4,201,308)
	(2,720,329)
	-
	-
	(6,921,637)

	Depreciation  of property, plant 

    and equiment
	(1,395,744)
	(154,926)
	-
	-
	(1,550,670)

	Surplus on revaluation of assets.
	(6,784,334)
	-
	-
	1,169,141
	(5,615,193)

	Retention
	347,931
	119,664
	-
	-
	467,595

	Advances received from customer
	6,213,876
	(4,467,139)
	-
	-
	1,746,737

	Employee benefit obligations
	3,134,933
	810,262
	-
	-
	3,945,195

	Total
	(2,684,646)
	(6,197,315)
	-
	1,169,141
	(7,712,820)


	
	Baht

	
	Separate

	
	
	(Charged) / credited to:
	

	
	January 1, 2017
	Profit or loss
	Other comprehensive income
	Equity
	December 31,  
2017

	Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
	
	
	
	
	

	Depreciation  of investments 

    property
	(8,815,234)
	(2,355,516)
	-
	-
	(11,170,750)

	Advances received from customer
	2,133,693
	(2,133,693)
	-
	-
	-

	Employee benefit obligations
	2,725,693
	(315,008)
	-
	-
	2,410,685

	Total
	(3,955,848)
	(4,804,217)
	-
	-
	(8,760,065)


	
	Baht

	
	Separate

	
	
	(Charged) / credited to:
	

	
	January 1, 2016
	Profit or loss
	Other comprehensive income
	Equity
	December 31,  
2016

	Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
	
	
	
	
	

	Depreciation  of investments 

    property
	(6,459,718)
	(2,355,516)
	-
	-
	(8,815,234)

	Advances received from customer
	5,889,139
	(3,755,446)
	-
	-
	2,133,693

	Employee benefit obligations
	2,226,184
	499,509
	-
	-
	2,725,693

	Total
	1,655,605
	(5,611,453)
	-
	-
	(3,955,848)


13. SHORT- TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
SHORT- TERM PROMISSORY NOTES
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of:
	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated financial statements
	separate financial statements

	
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016

	Promissory notes *
	844,680,000
	359,979,750
	662,680,000
	359,979,750

	Bill of exchange **
	390,000,000
	350,000,000
	390,000,000
	350,000,000

	Bond
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Less Interest discounting bills of exchange
	(4,654,440)
	(2,403,422)
	(4,654,440)
	(2,403,422)

	Total
	1,230,025,560
	707,576,328
	1,048,025,560
	707,576,328


*As at December 31, 2017, the Company issued 3 promissory notes by financial institutions amount of Baht 662.68 million due within May 2018 to June 2018, interest at 4.50%-4.75% and MLR – 1.75% - MLR – 1.85%
*As at December 31, 2017, a subsidiary issued 1 bill of exchange of Baht 182.00 million due within June 13, 2018, interest MLR – 1.50%

**The Company has issued 5 bills of exchanges due within May to July 2018 by amounting of Baht 390 million, discount rate of 2.40 per annum totaling Baht 4.65 million. The support business expansion and financial resources to conduct the business of the company. 
The company issued the Short-Term Bills of Exchange, tenor not exceeding 270 days from the date of issuance of the Bill of Exchange, in Thai Baht currency, with specified bearer condition. Face value is not lower than Baht 10 million of per unit. Total amount is not exceeding Baht 3,000 Billion at all times, which may be offered once or several times and/or on a revolving basis or in any other manner, so long as the total outstanding amount of the Bill of Exchange (B/E) does not exceed Baht 3,000 Billion at all times. Offering period from October 5, 2016 to October 4, 2017

14. Trade accounts and other current payable
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of:
	


	
	Baht

	
	
	Consolidated                           financial statements
	Separate

         financial statements

	
	
	December 31, 

2017
	December 31, 2016
	December 31, 2017
	December 31, 2016

	Trade accounts
	
	
	
	
	

	- Trade accounts
	
	549,493,987
	142,261,247
	483,912,057
	126,297,450

	- Note Payble Trade
	
	82,858,421
	28,318,456
	70,030,496
	25,928,924

	Total trade accounts
	
	632,352,408
	170,579,703
	553,942,553
	152,226,374

	Other current payable
	
	
	
	
	

	- Revernue recieived in advance
	
	246,419,117
	145,491,597
	240,564,756
	137,105,308

	- Accrued Expense
	
	96,045,199
	70,205,796
	60,863,049
	61,732,870

	- Advance payments for utilities
	
	13,053,894
	9,427,602
	11,677,682
	6,770,543

	- Retention
	
	107,015,218
	78,551,272
	92,032,406
	58,530,738

	- Creditors Revenue
	
	15,192,833
	5,210,821
	5,064,913
	3,303,735

	- Other
	
	8,815,770
	5,971,492
	6,390,408
	4,755,722

	Total other current payable
	
	486,542,031
	314,858,580
	416,593,214
	272,198,916

	Trade accounts and other payable to  related parties (Note 4.)
	
	72,294,764
	1,102,780
	14,127,289
	9,053,925

	Total trade accounts and other current payable
	
	1,191,189,203
	486,541,063
	984,663,056
	433,479,215


15. LONG-TERM LOANS 

       As at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of:
	


	
	Baht

	
	
	Consolidated                           financial statements
	Separate

         financial statements

	
	
	December 31, 
2017
	December 31, 2016
	December 31, 
2017
	December 31, 2016

	Long-term loans 
	
	
	
	
	

	- Long-term promissory notes
	
	7,000,000
	185,300,800
	-
	176,300,800

	- Long-term loans from       financial institutions
	
	75,000,000
	67,807,671
	75,000,000
	67,807,671

	- Debentures
	
	3,200,000,000
	2,000,000,000
	3,200,000,000
	2,000,000,000

	- Liabilities under hire purchase and financial lease agreements
	
	-
	50,781
	-
	-

	Total long-term loans
	
	3,282,000,000
	2,253,159,252
	3,275,000,000
	2,244,108,471

	Less : Current portion of long - term 
	
	
	
	
	

	- Long-term promissory notes
	
	2,000,000
	178,300,800
	-
	176,300,800

	- Long-term loans from financial institutions
	
	75,000,000
	67,807,671
	75,000,000
	67,807,671

	- Debentures
	
	800,000,000
	1,200,000,000
	800,000,000
	1,200,000,000

	- Liabilities under hire purchase and financial lease agreements
	
	-
	50,781
	-
	-

	Total current portion of long - term
	
	877,000,000
	1,446,159,252
	875,000,000
	1,444,108,471

	Long-term loans - net
	
	2,405,000,000
	807,000,000
	2,400,000,000
	800,000,000


LONG – TERM PROMISSORY NOTES 

As at December 31, 2016, the Company issued 9 promissory note by financial institutions amount of Bath 176.30 million with the interest rate of MLR-2% per annum, due on December 2017, payment for land of a subsidiary. all promissory notes were repaid.
As at December 31, 2017, a subsidiary has company issued 7 promissory notes by financial institutions, amount of Bath 7 million interest rate 4% per annum, due every six-months, beginning January 2018, the credit facility is guaranteed by the Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation.
LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

Change in long – term loan in for the year ended December 31, 2017 are as follows:

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated

financial statements
	Separate

financial statements

	Balance at January 1, 2017
	67,807,671
	67,807,671

	Increase
	1,224,587,009
	1,224,587,009

	Repay
	(1,217,394,680)
	(1,217,394,680)

	Balance at December 31, 2017
	75,000,000
	75,000,000


The above loans were guaranteed by the mortgage of land and construction there on as discussed in Note 7 and by the parent company and by the directors of the Company.

DEBENTURES 
As at December 31, 2017 consist of:
	Debenture No.
	No. of units
(Million unit)
	Principle
(Million Baht)
	Interest rate
per annum

(% p.a.)
	Term of interest
payment
	Maturity Date
	Outstanding balance as at

December 31, 2017
(Million Baht)

	2/2015
	0.80
	800
	4.25
	Every six-months (April 1 and October 1 each year, but)
	April

1, 2018
	800

	1/2017
	0.446
	446
	4.00
	Every six-months (February 9 and August 

9 each year, but)
	September
9, 2019
	446

	1/2017
	0.954
	954
	4.20
	Every six-months (February 9 and August 9 each year, but)
	September
9, 2020
	954

	2/2017
	1.000
	1,000
	4.25
	Every three-months (March, June, September December 29 each year, but)
	September

29, 2019
	1,000

	
	
	
	
	
	Total
	3,200

	Less     Current portion of long – term debentures
	
	
	(800)

	Net
	
	
	
	
	
	2,400


At the ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on April 28, 2016 for the issuance of the bonds from the outstanding balance at any time, of not exceeding Baht 3,500,000,000 (Three thousand five hundred million baht) to the outstanding balance at any time, of not exceeding Baht 5,000,000,000 (Five billion thousand baht)
16. ESTIMATED LIABILITY-EMPLOYEE BENEFIT

An independent actuary carried out an evaluation of the Company’s obligations for employees’ long-term benefits using the projected unit credit method.  The Company has provided the provision for employees’ long-term benefits as follows:

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated financial statements
	Separate
financial statements

	
	2017
	2017

	Provision for employee benefits - beginning
	19,725,981
	13,628,465

	Add  Recognized amount
	
	

	         Actuarial (gains) losses in other comprehensive 

         Income
	4,327,741
	2,115,220

	        Less Liability decrease from actual paid
	(2,536,762)
	(3,690,262)

	Provision for employee benefits - ending
	21,516,960
	12,053,423

	
	
	

	Present value of unfunded obligation 
	21,516,960
	12,053,423

	Expense recognized in profit or loss as follows:
	
	

	Current service cost
	3,569,759
	1,597,338

	Interest cost
	757,982
	517,882

	Total – recognized in the statement of income 
	4,327,741
	2,115,220


Principal actuarial assumptions (Actuarial basis)
	
	Consolidated financial statement
	Separate
financial statements

	
	2017
	2017

	Discount rate (%)
	3.40
	3.40

	Salary increase rate (%)
	5.50-6.00
	5.50-6.00

	Retirement age (year old)
	60
	60

	
	
	


17. SHARE CAPITAL AND DIVIDENDS PAID
1.1.  Share capital
Issued and paid-up of dinary shares of the Company hane been increared from 1,142,143,622 shares at the par value of Baht 1, as totalling Baht 1,142,143,622 to 1,214,442,959 shares at the par value of Baht 1, as totalling  Baht 1,214,442,959. The company has been received fully paid – up shares, On July 12, 2017
As the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for the Year 2017. On the April,27 2017.

·   Approved the decrease of the registered capital of the Company in the amount of Baht 89,594,195 from the existing amount of Baht 1,234,510,457 to Baht 1,144,916,262, divided into 1,144,916,262 ordinary shares, with a par value of Baht 1 per share, by eliminating the 1,875,200registered shares whichremain from the exercise of the warrants to purchase shares allocated to executives and employees of the company and/or its subsidiaries No.1 (SENA-WA) and No.2 (SENA-WB) 1,875,200 shares at the par value of Baht 1and the remaining shares from the offering to specific per sonsunder Private Placement schemeinthe amount of 87,718,995 shares, totaling 89,594,195 registered shares which have not been sold, at Baht 1 par value, And May 17, 2017, decrease of the registered with the Ministry of Commerce of Thailand.
·   Approved the increase of registered capital by another Baht 97,563,029 from the existing registered capital of Baht 1,144,916,262 to the new registered capital of Baht 1,242,479,291, byissuing 97,563,029 new ordinary shares, at the par value of Baht 1 per share,to accommodate the stock dividend payment, the allocation of warrants to purchase or dinary shares to executives and employees of the company and/or its subsidiaries No.5 (SENA-WE) and No.6 (SENA-WF), and the adjustmen to fexercise price and ratio of warrants to purchase new or dinary shares of the Company tobe issued to executives and employees No.3 (SENA-WC), No.4(SENA-WD), on May 18, 2017, increase of the registered with the Ministry of Commerce of Thailand.
As at December 31, 2016 and 2017consist of:

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated/Separate

financial statements

	
	As at 
December 31, 

2017
	As at December 31, 2016

	Authorised Share Capital
	
	

	Balance as at January 1, 2017
	1,234,510,457
	1,234,510,457

	Increase share Capital
	97,563,029
	-

	Decrease share Capital
	(89,594,195)
	-

	Balance as at December 31, 2017
	1,242,479,291
	1,234,510,457


	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated/Separate

financial statements

	
	As at  December 31, 

2017
	As at December 31, 2016

	Authorised Share Capital
	
	

	Balance as at January 1, 2017
	1,142,143,622
	1,138,508,512

	Increase issue and paid-up Capital
	901,560
	3,635,110

	Dividends share
	71,397,777
	-

	Balance as at December 31, 2017
	1,214,442,959
	1,142,143,622


1.2. Dividends Paid
Year 2017

  According to the resolution of the Board of Directors Meeting No. 5/2017 held on August 11, 2017 approved the interim dividend payment for the year 2017 to shareholders , based on  the company's operating performance  for the period of January 1, 2017 to June 30, 2017 was Baht 66.25 million or equivalent to Baht 0.05455 per share and the Company paid the dividend on September 8, 2017.

As the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for the Year 2017. On the April 27,2017.
· Approved the appropriation of net profit in the amount of Baht 27,085,416.14 for the Year 2016 as legal reserve according to the law and approved payment of dividendsfor the performance the accounting period January 1, 2016 - December 31, 2016 in the approximate amount of Baht 305,026,383.04 or Baht 0.26709 per share. The proposed dividend consists of profit derived from the Company’s business promoted by the Board of Investment in the amount of Baht 6,288,079.72 and profit derived from the Company’s business, not promoted by the Board of Investment in the amount of Baht 298,738,303.32. The Company had paid interim dividends for the first-half-year operations of 2016 in the total amount of Baht 222,247,790.50 or Baht 0.19463 per share, according to the resolution of the Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 4/2016 which was held on August 11,2016. Therefore, the remaining dividend for the Years 2016 amount to be paid in form of cash in the approximate amount Baht 82,778,592.54, as detailed below;

1. Payment in the form of ordinary shares in the amount approximately 71,400,249 shares with a par value of Baht 1 per share to the shareholders, at the ratio of 16 existing shares to 1 shere dividend or Baht 0.06250 per share. The dividend consists of profit derived from the Company’s business promoted by the Board of Investment in the amount of Baht 0.00141 per share and profit derived from the Company’s business not promoted by the Board of Investment in the amount of Baht 0.06109 per share. Where any shareholder has fractions of shares which are not entitled to 1 share, shareholders will be compensated with cash dividends in the amount of Baht 0.06250 per share.

2. Payment in the form of cash in the amount of Baht 11,378,343.54 or Baht 0.00996 per share. The dividend consists of profit derived from the Company’s business promoted by the Board of Investment in the amount of Baht 0.00023 per share and profit derived from the Company’s business not promoted by the Board of Investment in the amount of Baht 0.00973 per share.

Year 2016
At the Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 4/2016 held on August 11, 2016, the directors approved to pay interim dividends interiam from the 2016 of Baht 0.00387 per share from net profit relating solely to business operations benefiting from the privileges under the Investment Promotion and Baht 0.19076 per share from net profit which out the privileges under the Investment Promotion, totalling of Baht 222.25 million. The Company pay dividends on September 9, 2016.

At the ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on April 28, 2016., the directors approved to pay annual dividends from the 2015 of Baht 0.021249 per share from net profit relating solely to business operations benefiting from the privileges under the Investment Promotion and Baht 0.079634 per share from net profit which out the privileges under the Investment promotion, totaling of Baht 101.65 million. The Company paid the dividends at Baht 0.050604 totaling of Baht 44.32 million. Remaining dividend at 0.050279 baht totaling of Baht 57.33 million.
1.3. Warrants

As the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for the Year 2017. On the April,27 2017.
· Approved the issuance and allocation of warrants to purchase ordinary shares to executives and employees of the company and/or its subsidiaries No. 5 (SENA-WE) in the amount of not exceeding 20,000,000 units, which will be allocated to Executives and Employees not exceeding 25 persons with no consideration and warrants to purchase ordinary shares to executives and employees of the company and/or its subsidiaries No. 6 (SENA-WF) in the amount of not exceeding 6,000,000 units,which will be allocated to Executives and Employees not exceeding 20 persons On June 26, 2017, the results of the allocation were as follows:
	Warrant
	Amount of the warrant approved (Unit)
	Amount of the warrant sall ocated (Unit)
	Exercise ratio
	Director/employees beging allocated

	SENA-WE
	20,000,000
	10,300,000
	1 unit : 1 shere
	22 persons

	SENA-WF
	6,000,000
	3,000,000
	1 unit : 1 shere
	20 persons


· Approved the adjustment of the exercise price and ratio of warrants to purchase new or dinary shares of the Company to be issued to executives and employees No.3 (SENA-WC) and No.4 (SENA-WD) because the payment of dividends by issuing or dinary shares in Agenda 4 and the issuanceand allocation of warrants to purchase or dinary shares to executives and employees of the Company and/or its subsidiaries No.5 (SENA-WE) and No.6 (SENA-WF) detailed as follows:

1. The adjustment of  the exercise price and ratio No.1 as are sult of the payment of dividends
1.1 SENA-WC
             

Existing

                           AfterAdjustment

                 
        Exercise Price                    
Baht 2.654 per share

Baht 2.498 per share

                        
        Exercise Ratio
             1 unit per 1.074 share

1 units per 1.142 share

1.2 SENA-WD


Existing

                            AfterAdjustment
Exercise Price                 
Baht 2.850 per share

 Baht 2.682 per share

Exercise Ratio
             1 unit per 1.000 share

 1 units per 1.063 share
2. The adjustment of the exercise price and ratio No.2 asaresult of the is suanceand allocation of warrants to purchase or dinary shares to executives and employees of the company and/or its subsidiaries No.5 (SENA-WE) and No.6 (SENA-WF)
2.1 SENA-WC


Existing

                            AfterAdjustment
Exercise Price                    
Baht 2.498 per share

 Baht 2.492 per share

Exercise Ratio
             1 unitper 1.142 share

 1 units per 1.145 share

2.2 SENA-WD

 
Existing

          
 
AfterAdjustment
Exercise Price                    
Baht 2.682 per share

Baht 2.676 per share

Exercise Ratio
           
1 unit per 1.063 share

1 units per 1.066 share

18. LEGAL RESERVE  
Under the provisions of the Thai Public Company Limited Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to  appropriate at least 5% of its annual net income after deduction of the deficit brought forward (if any) as reserve fund until the reserve equal to 10% of authorized share capital. The reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
19. EXPENSES BY NATURE  
The significant expenses by nature for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated financial statements
	Separate financial statements

	
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016

	Changes in finished goods and works in process
	(563,085,576)
	(690,195,611)
	(492,006,224)
	(544,878,901)

	Cost of land, Construction works and public utility development
	2,475,478,846
	1,355,356,918
	2,450,344,726
	1,313,912,112

	Salary and wages and other employee benefits
	295,647,063
	230,987,492
	180,114,470
	143,324,158

	Depreciation
	60,379,834
	63,607,057
	
34,740,135
	36,706,550

	Advertising expenses
	420,057,329
	322,196,122
	402,848,224
	303,435,621

	Specific business tax and transfer fee
	157,235,074
	136,585,371
	150,502,049
	123,366,461


20. INCOME TAX

Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of; 
	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated financial statements
	Separate financial     statements

	
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016

	Current income tax:
	
	
	
	

	Income tax during the years
	231,258,511
	182,141,510
	186,437,336
	161,352,078

	Deferred income tax: 
	
	
	
	

	Deferred income from the temporary
difference and reverse the permanent  difference  
	(4,700,777)
	6,197,317
	4,804,218
	5,611,453

	Income tax expense in Comprehensive
income statements
	226,557,734
	188,338,827
	191,241,554
	166,963,531


21. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic earnings per share were based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares during the years, calculated as follow:

	
	
	Baht

	
	
	Consolidated financial statements
	Separate financial statements

	
	
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016

	Earning for the years (Baht)
	
	742,492,157
	762,546,971
	714,971,098
	641,550,269

	Weighted average number of ordinary shares(shares)
	
	1,185,731,853
	1,141,006,542
	1,185,731,853
	1,141,006,542

	Basic earnings per share    (Baht per shares)
	
	0.6262
	0.6683
	0.6030
	0.5623


22. DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the periods adjusted for the effect of conversion of warrant to ordinary share.
	
	Baht

	
	Consolidated financial statements
	Separate financial
 statements

	
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016

	Earning for the years (Baht)
	0.6258
	0.6672
	0.6026
	0.5614

	Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares)
	1,186,416,520
	1,142,841,167
	1,186,416,520
	1,142,841,167


23. PROMOTIONAL PRIVILEGES FROM B.O.I

On December 31, 2017, a subsidiaries received 3 promotional privileges from the Investment Promotion Act of B.E.2520,  for the operation of electricity from solar power of roof-top type. The major benefit from the promotional privileges is exemption from payment of income tax for the operations for a period of eight years from the date on which the income is first derived from the operation.
The Company and subsidiary have been received promoted from B.O.I and Non-B.O.I as the following :

	
	(Unit : Baht)

	
	Consolidated financial statements

	
	For the years ended December 31, 2017

	
	Investment Promotional activities
	Non- Investment Promotional
	Total

	Revenue from sales
	6,682,548
	5,154,362,935
	5,161,045,483

	Cost of sales
	(3,221,125)
	(3,121,642,711)
	(3,124,863,836)

	Gross profit
	3,461,423
	2,032,720,224
	2,036,181,647

	Other revenue
	153,405
	60,038,701
	60,192,106

	Income before expenses
	3,614,828
	2,092,758,925
	2,096,373,753

	Selling expenses
	-
	(595,363,883)
	(595,363,883)

	Administrative expenses
	(363,697)
	(382,977,733)
	(383,341,430)

	Management remuneration
	-
	(18,261,132)
	(18,261,132)

	Total Expenses
	(363,697)
	(996,602,748)
	(996,966,445)

	Income before finance costs and income tax
	3,251,131
	1,096,156,177
	1,099,407,308

	Finance costs
	-
	(57,049,935)
	(57,049,935)

	Profit (loss) from investments in associates
	-
	(41,565,716)
	(41,565,716)

	Income before tax
	3,251,131
	997,540,526
	1,000,791,657

	Income tax
	-
	(226,557,734)
	(226,557,734)

	Net profit
	3,251,131
	770,982,792
	774,233,923


	
	(Unit : Baht)

	
	Consolidated financial statements

	
	For the years ended December 31, 2016

	
	Investment Promotional activities
	Non- Investment Promotional
	Total

	Revenue from sales
	69,933,496
	3,936,072,546
	4,006,006,042

	Cost of sales
	(43,400,238)
	(2,219,330,768)
	(2,262,731,006)

	Gross profit
	26,533,258
	1,716,741,778
	1,743,275,036

	Other revenue
	566,909
	51,992,128
	52,559,037

	Income before expenses
	27,100,167
	1,768,733,906
	1,795,834,073

	Selling expenses
	(5,947,386)
	(465,134,264)
	(471,081,650)

	Administrative expenses
	(4,116,119)
	(323,262,487)
	(327,378,606)

	Management remuneration
	-
	(15,914,842)
	(15,914,842)

	Total Expenses
	(10,063,505)
	(804,311,593)
	(814,375,098)

	Income before finance costs and income tax
	17,036,662
	964,422,313
	981,458,975

	Finance costs
	(3,031)
	(83,947,085)
	(83,950,116)

	Profit (loss) from investments in associates
	-
	55,115,210
	55,115,210

	Income before tax
	17,033,631
	935,590,438
	952,624,069

	Income tax
	(3,289,229)
	(185,049,598)
	(188,338,827)

	Net profit
	13,744,402
	750,540,840
	764,285,242


	
	(Unit : Baht)

	
	Separate financial statements

	
	For the years ended December 31, 2016

	
	Investment Promotional activities
	Non- Investment Promotional
	Total

	Revenue from sales
	64,276,300
	3,413,859,793
	3,478,136,093

	Cost of sales
	(38,497,552)
	(1,912,623,346)
	(1,951,120,898)

	Gross profit
	25,778,748
	1,501,236,447
	1,527,015,195

	Other revenue
	130,000
	50,846,280
	50,976,280

	Income before expenses
	25,908,748
	1,552,082,727
	1,577,991,475

	Selling expenses
	(5,947,386)
	(433,981,235)
	(439,928,621)

	Administrative expenses
	(3,710,745)
	(222,946,747)
	(226,657,492)

	Management remuneration
	-
	(15,734,842)
	(15,734,842)

	Total Expenses
	(9,658,131)
	(672,662,824)
	(682,320,955)

	Income before finance costs and income tax
	16,250,617
	879,419,903
	895,670,520

	Finance costs
	(3,031)
	(87,153,689)
	(87,156,720)

	Income before tax
	16,247,586
	792,266,214
	808,513,800

	Income tax
	(3,297,551)
	(163,665,980)
	(166,963,531)

	Net profit
	12,950,035
	628,600,234
	641,550,269


24. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group Company operates business on single geographic segments that Thailand and business segments consist of: Property development for sales. the golf course services and services apartment. The company’s revenue from the golf course services and service apartment less than 10% of total revenue, so this segment information is not present for financial statement.
	Unit: Million baht

	Consolidated financial statements

	For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

	
	High Rise

	Low Rise

	Solar Group

	Rent and Service
	Total


	
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016

	Revenue from sales
	3,081.02
	3,025.78
	1,454.20
	704.50
	278.43
	37.31
	347.39
	238.42
	5,161.04
	4,006.01

	Cost of sales
	(1,701.85)
	(1,675.20)
	(1,058.78)
	(428.16)
	(188.11)
	(29.13)
	(176.12)
	(130.25)
	(3,124.86)
	(2,262.73)

	Gross margin
	1,379.17
	1,350.58
	395.42
	276.34
	90.32
	8.18
	171.27
	108.17
	2,036.18
	1,743.28

	Net profit
	
	
	
	742.49
	762.55
	
	
	
	
	762.55


	Unit: Million baht

	Separate financial statements

	For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

	
	High Rise
	Low Rise
	Rent and Service
	Total

	
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016
	2017
	2016

	Revenue from sales
	3,035.81
	2,875.89
	1,325.12
	509.54
	91.66
	92.71
	4,452.59
	3,478.14

	Cost of sales
	(1,676.79)
	(1,602.71)
	(987.33)
	(306.09)
	(39.67)
	(42.32)
	(2,703.79)
	(1,951.12)

	Gross margin
	1,359.02
	1,273.18
	337.79
	203.45
	51.99
	50.39
	1,748.80
	1,527.02

	Net profit
	
	714.97
	641.55
	
	
	
	
	641.55


25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

25.1 Financial risk management policy

The Company is exposed to normal business risks from changes in market interest rates so The Company will consider to use appropriate financial instruments. The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

25.2 Interest rate risk

Risk on interest rates is derived from the change of the interest rate in the future, which will affect upon the Group’s operating results and cash flows. The Company is exposed to interest rate long term since they have deposits, loans from related parties and financial institutions that bear interest rates comparable to market interest rates. However, The Company does not used the financial instruments.
25.3 Fair Value 

Since most of the financial assets and liabilities are short-term, the Group believes such book value of the financial assets and liabilities are presented in value not materially different from relevant fair value.
26. CONTINGENT  LIABILITIES COMMITMENTS

22.1    The contingent liabilities and commitments with commercial banks 

As at  December 31, 2017, the Group had contingent liabilities and commitments in financial institutions as follows:

22.1.1 The Company and subsidiaries has mortgaged project land for overdrafts facility amounting to Baht 20 million and Baht 3 million, respectively.

22.1.2 The Company and subsidiary  has commitment respect of bank guarantee electricity usage, public utilities and other amount of Baht 172.17 million and 24.80 million, respectively to mortgage by bank deposit and land project. 

22.1.3 A subsidiary has mortgaged land of development (together with structures) cost of Baht 200 million and guaranteed by company’s director for credit facilities obtained from banks amount of Baht 18 million (no collateral fee charge). Presently, such investment property has been withdrawn and credit facility has also beenclosed. In year 2016 has redeemed and closed the credit line.
22.1.4 Agreements

The Company has commitment construction work agreement to sub-contractors amounting of Baht 492.95 million. And three subsidiaries have commitment to sub-contractors amounting of Baht 13.14 million.

22.1.5 A subsidiary has entered into memorandum of understanding with three non-related 3 persons.  
A subsidiary being the golf course management and will get profit sharing by 20% of net profit, and the remain profit will be shared follow the land ownership of golf course.

22.1.6 A subsidiary has a concession of golf car rental operating to non-related company, for the period of 3 year, since February 2, 2017 to February 1, 2020, profit sharing of 55:45.

22.1.7 The Company has commitment on land sell and purchase agreement of Baht 711.08 million and Bath 379.04 million respectively
22.1.8 On  June 1, 2017, an indirect subsidiary entered into a lease agreement for the solar power plant with a third party for  period  1 year from the date of delivery. The rent is set at  95 percent (ninety-five) of price of the Metropolitan Electricity Authority or Provincial Electricity Authority announced at each time interval, as the case may be. (excluding VAT)
22.2 Long-term contract
On February 1, 2011, the subsidiary amended the agreement with the sale agent to pay compensation fee with individual (Unrelated). The agreement will pay 2% of the purchase price(the same pay rate of 1.5 % of the purchase price) as follow:

At reservation and contract signed
pay rate 0.50%   of selling price

Completed 3 installments
pay rate 0.50%   of selling price
Ownership transferred
pay rate 1.00%   of selling price
On February 1, 2012, the subsidiary additionally amended the agreement with the sale agent to pay compensation fee with individual the terms of settlement as it was. And some for sale if the price is set will be sold as part of compensation.
As at December 31, 2017, the subsidiary has commitments under such agreement amounting of Baht 0.89 million.
22.3 Litigation

In year 2006, the Company and the director of Sinsapthanya Co., Ltd. have been filed as defendant by two plaintiffs as the projects’ billboard collapsed for the total claim of Baht 3.20 million and 0.06 million, respectively. On August 8, 2007, the Civil Court decrees the Company to pay compensation loss amounting to Baht 1.15 million and Baht 1.12 million, respectively together with interest charged 7.5% per annum since the filing date. And on July 4, 2012, the Appeal Court has the judgment as the Civil Court.  The Supreme Court has rendered its judgment to change the Appeal Court judgment as the Company (the 2nd defendant) to pay compensation to the 1st plaintiff by Baht 667,794.30.  Apart from this change, the judgment is the same as the Appeal Court judgment. The Company recorded such expense under “Administrative Expenses” account in the statement of comprehensive income and also recognized as “Provision for Liabilities” in the statement of financial position. And the company has paid off all, In quarter 1 of 2017, the case is ended
In Year 2015, the Company has been filed to a condominium  juristic to accuse that condominium has some damage and the Company has not yet repaired to complete. The plaintiffs have filed a claim for damages in the amount of Baht 22.40 million. The civil court has judged that the Company pay damages of  Baht 5.44 million  plus interest of 7.5 percent per annum from the date of filing until payment is complete and later on February 16, 2017, the Court of Appeal has a confirmation of the civil court’s judgment and the Company has filed a petition to the Supreme Court, so the case has been still pending action on the Supreme court ,however, the Company has recorded such expenditure under liabilities account in the statement of financial position.
27. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

he primary objectives of the Company’s and subsidiaries’ capital management are to maintain their abilities to continue as a going concern and to maintain an appropriate capital structure. 

As at December 31, 2017, debt to equity ratio in the consolidated financial statements is 1.25:1 (Separate financial statements: Debt-to-equity ratio is 1.41:1).
28. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
According to the resolution of the Executive Board meeting No. 1/2018 ,on January 8, 2018, has approved the purchase of additional land title deed No. 26087 located in Tumbol Bang Kae Mueang Pathum District , Thani Pathumthani, The total land area  1-3-56 rai wah has no building at the price of 30,000 baht per square wah, total amount of 22,680,000 baht, purpose for the development of residential land for sale to the public. The transfer of ownership of the land to the Company on January 12, 2018.
According to the resolution of the Executive Board meeting No. 2/2018 ,on February 5,2018, has approved the purchase of additional land title deed No. 8560 land number 166 located in Tambon SuanDaeng, Talingchan District, Bangkok,  area of 497 parts of the total land area of 1,657 (Part of Mrs. Kualin Kamolsuwan) unrelated person. The total land area  497 square wah has no building at the price of 180,000 baht per square wah, total amount of 89,460,000 baht, purpose for the development of residential land for sale to the public. The transfer of ownership of the land to the Company on February 7, 2018.
According to the resolution of the Executive Board meeting No. 3/2018 ,on February 6,2018, has approved the purchase of additional land title deed No. 8560 land number 166 located in Tambon SuanDaeng, Talingchan District, Bangkok,  area of 497 parts of the total land area of 1,657 (Part of Mr. Metta Thadda) unrelated person. The total land area  497 square wah has no building at the price of 180,000 baht per square wah, total amount of 89,460,000 baht, purpose for the development of residential land for sale to the public. The transfer of ownership of the land to the Company on February 8, 2018.
According to the resolution of the Executive Board meeting No. 4/2018 ,on February 7,2018, has approved the purchase of additional land title deed No. 8560 land number 166 located in Tambon SuanDaeng, Talingchan District, Bangkok,  area of 663 parts of the total land area of 1,657 (Part of Mrs. Sumalee Chris Tanin) unrelated person. The total land area  663 square wah has no building at the price of 180,000 baht per square wah, total amount of 119,340,000 baht, purpose for the development of residential land for sale to the public. The transfer of ownership of the land to the Company on February 9, 2018.
The Board of Directors' Meeting No. 1/2018 held on January 29, 2018 The summary of resolutions to approve the enter into transaction to acquire a land plot, a part of the land title deed no.74195 (Original title deed no. 28081), located at Bangpoon Sub-district, Muang District, Pathumthani Province, having the total area of 32.6 Square Wah,inclusive of a right of servitude to utilize two roads leading to the land. The agreed land price is Baht 489,000 or equivalent to Baht 15,000 per square wah,which is not higher than the averaged appraised value. As the said land is a part of the lands specified under the Memorandum between the Company and SirinthipKarnKeha Co., Ltd., dated April 3, 2006, the Company has declared in the Company’s Prospectus that the Company shall comply with the practice to prevent conflict of interests and apply the rules relating to the connected person transaction to the transactions thereunder. Therefore, the Company is obliged to comply with the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board No. ThorJor. 21/2551 Re: Rules on Connected Transactions dated 31 August 2008 (as amended) and the Notification of the Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand Re: Disclosure and Other Acts of Listed Companies on Connected Transactions, B.E. 2546 dated 19 November 2003 (as amended) (the "Connected Transaction Notifications").Considering the transaction, the acquisition of land is considered as the transaction relating to assets and services having transaction size equals to 0.01% of the net tangible asset value according to the consolidated financial statement of the Company as of 30 September 2017, which is less than 0.03 of the net tangible asset value. when combining with the previous transaction occurred during the past 6 months, the total transaction value is equal to 2.33% of the net tangible asset value according to the consolidated financial statement of the Company as of 30 September 2017, which is greater than 0.03% but less than 3.00% of the net tangible asset value. Therefore, the Company is required to obtain the approval from the Board of Directors’ Meeting before the entry into the transaction and to disclose the relevant information to the SET
According to SENA Development PLC.’ s Board of Directors Meeting No.2/2018 held on February 26, 2018 resolved that the Meeting approved the call for its paid up capital of SENA Hankyu 1 Co.,ltd  in the amount of THB 80 Million (Baht eighty Million) by paying THB 40.80 Million (Baht Forty million and Eight hundred thousand). And also approved to do Capital increase in the amount of THB 525 Million (Baht Five hundred and Twenty Five million) from THB 575,000,000 (Baht Five hundred and seventy-five Million) to THB 1,100,000,000 (Baht One thousand and one hundred Million) of SENA Hankyu 1 Co.,ltd.The Company will subscribe 267,750,000 new shares in proportion to its shareholding in order to maintain the existing shareholding proportion. However, there is no call for paid up capital for SENA Hankyu 1 Co.,ltd.
According to SENA Development PLC.’ s Board of Directors Meeting No.2/2018 held on February 26, 2018 resolved that the Meeting approved to do Capital increase in the amount of THB 700 Million (Baht Seven hundred Million) from THB 500,000,000 (Baht Five hundred Million) to THB 1,200,000,000 (Baht One thousand and two hundred Million) of SENA Hankyu 2 Co.,ltd. However, there is no call for paid up capital for SENA Hankyu 2 Co.,ltd.
According to SENA Development PLC.’ s Board of Directors Meeting No.2/2018 held on February 26, 2018 resolved that the Meeting approved to do the joint venture with Hankyu Realty Co.,Ltd for Ekamai Project as a Condominium development project in Ekamai area with the Shareholding proportion of 50.99%
29. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain transactions in the financial statements for period 2016 have been reclassified in accordance with the Notification of the Department of Business Development date October 11, 2016 regarding “The Brief Particulars in the Financial Statements B.E. 2016” 
30. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of directors on February 26, 2018.
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